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. Acronyms and Glossary of Terms

AIE Authority to Incur Expenditure

CFO Chief Finance Officer

HAU Head of Accounting Unit

IPSAS Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

OCOB Office of the Controller of Budget

OAG Offrce of the Auditor General

PFM Public Finance Management

BETA Bottom-upEconomicTransformationAgenda

EAPCC

KEBS

zuPI

KIRDI

KENAS

NMC

SMC

ACA

MITI

KNQA

ACQF

I]NIDO

EAC

KTPP

KITI

PAC

East African Portland Cement Company

Kenya Bureau of Standards

Kenya Industrial Property Instihrte

Kenya Induskial Research and Development Institute

Kenya Accreditation Services

Numerical Machining Complex

Scrap Metal Council

Anti-Counterfeit Authority

Ministry of Investsnents, Trade, and Industry

Kenya National Qualifications Authority

African Continental Qualifrcations Framework

United Nations Industrial Development Organization

East African Commission

Kenya Trade and Poverty Programme

Kenya Industrial Training lnstihrte

Parliamentary Accounts Committee
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TATE DEPARTMENT tr'OR INDUSTRY KEY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

a). Background information

State Department for Industry is established under the Executive Order No. I ofJanuary 2023

t is placed under the Ministry of Investments, Trade and Industry. It has the overarching

ponsibility of: Industrial Policy and Planning; Buy Kenya Build Kenya Policy and Strategy;

ting Standardization in Industry and Quality Control; Promotion and oversight of the

Development of Special economic zones and Industrial Parks; Kenya Property Rights Policy

(Patents, Trade Marks, Service Marks, and Innovations); Promotion ofvalue Addition and Agro-

Processing; Textile Sector Development; Leather Sector Development and Promotion of Value

chaiq oversight and regulation of Scrap Metal Industry; Promotion and Development of Medium

Business Enterprises; Industrial Training and Capacity Development; combat counterfeiting trade

and other dealings in counterfeit goods; and Oversight, Administration and Enforcement of the

l,ocal Content Policy.

Under the Bottom-up Economic Trarsformation Agenda (BETA), the State Department is

implernenting various interventions under the Manufacturing Sector Pillar to raise Sector's

contribution share to GDP to 15 percent by supporting value addition in identified priority areas

to accelerate economic growt[ create jobs and reduce poverty.

The mandate for the State Department for Industry includes:

i. To Implement Industrial Policy and Planning;

ii. Buy Kenya Build Kenya Policy and Stategy;

iii. To promote Standardization in Industry and Quality Control;

iv. Promotion and oversight ofthe Development ofSpecial economic zones and Industrial

Parks;

v. Kenya Property Rights Policy (Patents, Trade Marks, Service Marks, and Innovations);

Promotion of value Addition and Agro-Processing;

vi. Textile Sector Development;

vii. Leather Sector;

viii. Development and Promotion of Value Chain;

ix. Oversight and regulation ofScrap Metal Industry;
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x. Promotion and Development of Medium Business Enterprises;

xi. Industrial Training and Capacity Development;

xii. To combat counterfeiting trade and other dealings in counterfeit goods; and

xiii. Oversight, Administration and Enforcement ofthe Local Content Policy.

Autonomous and Semi-Autonomous Government Agencies

During the period, the State Deparfirent for Industry had Nine (9) State Corporations, One (l)

training Institution and three (3) Tribunals. The State Corporations under the State Department

include:

Autonomous Government Agencies:

i.) East African Portland Cement Company (EAPCC)

ii.) Kenya Bureau of Standards (KEBS.

Seni-Autonomous Government Agencies:

iii.) Kenya Industrial Property Institute (KIPI)

iv.) Kenya Industrial Research and Development Institute (KIRDI)

v.) Kenya Accreditation Services (KENAS)

vi.) Numerical Machining Complex (NMC)

vii.) Scrap Metal Council (SMC)

viii.) Anti-CounterfeitAuthority(ACA)

ix.) RIVATEX EA Limited.

Annual Reports and Financial Statements

At the Cabinet level, the Ministry is represented by the Cabinet Secretary for Investrnent, Trade

and Industry, who is responsible for guiding on the general policy formulation and provides

strategic direction to the Ministry.
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ISION, MISSION AND CORE VALUES

ision

lobally competitive and sustainable industrial sector

ssron

o create an enabling environment for a globally competitive and sustainable industrial sector

re Values

State Department seeks to uphold the following core values:

O Customer focus: We are committed to upholding the highest standard in our services

delivery to all customers;

O Integrity: we are committed to acting in an honest impartial, fair and transparent

marmer and being devoid of comrption Practices while delivering our services;

O Team work: We will deliberately nurture team spirit, collaboration, consultation and

adopt participatory approach in discharging our mandate;

O Professionslism: We will maintain high level of professionalism through continuous

competency development;

O Creativity rnd innovativeness: We will continuously be seeking innovative methods

of delivery our services;

0 Elficiency and efrectiyeness: we will be guided by operational, rationalization and

cost saving measures;

0 Commitment to Environmental Sustainabitity: we shall be committed to cnsure

sustainable industrial and enterprise development process, which protects the

environment.

trategic Objectives

i.) To improve product competitiveness and business environment

ii.)

ii.)

v.)

v.)

.)

To increase manufacturing sector's contribution to GDP to 15 per cent

To attract Domestic and Foreign Direct investrnents

To generate employment opponunities

To mobilize resources for Industrial and Trade Development

Strengthen institutional capacity for service delivery.

vll
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O). Key Management

The State Department for Industry day-to-day management is under the following key organs:

t.

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

vii.

viii.

ix.

x.

ri.

xii.

Cabinet Secretary Office

Principal Secretary Office

Industrialization Secretary

Directorate of Agro - industries;

Directorate of Chemical and Mineral Industries;

Directorate of Field Services;

Directorate of Engineering and Construction industries;

Directorate of Enterprise Development;

Directorate of Research, Manufacturing and Industrialization Policy;

Directorate of Private Sector Development and Business Environment;

Kenya Industrial Training Institute; and

Administration and Support Services.

(c). FiduciaryManagement

The key management personnel who held offrce during the financial year ended 30rh June 2023

and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

No. Dcsignadon Nrmc

I Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of lnveshnents, Trade and

Industry

Hon. Moses K. Kuria, HSC

2 Principal Secretary, State Department for Industry Dr. Juma Mukhwana,PhD,
HSC

3 Secretary Administration Mr. Karanja Njora

4 Ag. Industrialization Secretary/ Director Agro -
processing industries

Mr. Nobby Macharia

5 Director Chemical and Mineml Industries Mr. Julius Kirima, HSC

6 Director Field Services Mr. Joseph Mbeva

7 Director Engineering and Constuction industries Mr. Patrick Wahome

8 Director Enterprise Development Ms. Nicholas Gakiha

9 Ag. Director Research, Manufacturing and

Industrialization Policy

Mr. Roy Nyagena

vln
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Ms. Pcris Adonei Karya Industrid Training Institrtc
Mr. Tinothy Oahnl" HSCil Dircctor of Planning

Ms. Mary Kcountot2 Diloctor Hueatr Rosourcc rod Devclopnot
l3 Mr. Ioash AkumaScaior Cticf Financc Officcr

CPA Ernest Lukayut4 Hoad of Aocounting Unit
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Hon. Moses K. Kuria is the Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of
lnvestrnents, Trade and Industry, Govemment ofKenya. He is an

experienced and dedicated public servant with over 30 years of
experience, progressively and significantly contributing to the

social, political, and economic space in Kenya. He is also a

distinguished professional who has an entrepreneurial career in
manufacturing, banking and investment both in Kenya and

intemationally.
He has been elected and served twice as a Member of Parliament

for Gatundu South, Kiambu County, Kenya, and served as a

member of various committees including Budget and

Appropriations, Transport, Inftastructure, Public Works and

Housing as well as served as a member of the Bicameral and

Bipartisan committee on electoral reforms.
Over the years, Honourable Kuria has developed a global network
of relationships mostly in the Middle East as well as in Euope
and China. He has spent most of his working life abroad dealing

with business people at the highest level, so having a clear vision
ofthe big picture.
He has worked as the Chief Operating Officer, WAMAD

result, Al Raiah Bank is now the most profitable bank in Saudi

information technology and consulting group, in Saudi Arabia
where he put together a portfolio of products and services and

oversaw thc growth of up to 50 top-notch consultants,

representing major vendors from Europe, USA, and India. In his
capacity, he spearhcaded the set-up ofa resourcc center in Jordan

and an intemational office in Dubai that led to Warnad

Information Technology and Consulting Group emerge as one of
the leading IT companies in the region, especially in thc banking
and financial services sector.
He was also involved in setting up the Saudi Arabian General

Investsnent Authority on a consulting role. This involved the set-

up of a "One-Stop" center- a center that offered government

services such as immigration, licensing, cxport Promotion among

others to foreign investos. He assisted in creating partnership

agreemcnts with leading manufacturers and bushcss people with
the Fujairah Free Zone Authority. This helped the Authority
establish investor networks in Saudi Arabia, a model that was

replicated in other Gulf Countries.
Hon. Kuria has worked with Al Rajhi Ba*, Saudi Arabia, one of
the largest Islamic banks in the world as a Process Improvement

Manager, wherc he spearheaded business process re-engineering

at a time the bank faced major challenges such as ageing systems

that wcre manual, fragmented and inelficient. In this role, He
managed to set up a team ofqualifred business analysts and set up

multiple projects to focus on areas ofhigh imPact to the business

lcading to growth of remittances by up to 3007o in 4 years.

As a result ofthe many improvements and solid foundations based

on quality systems, people and processes that we put in, as a

Hon. Moses I( Kuria, HSC
Crbiret Secretrry, Ministry of
Invettments, Tmde end Industry

xl



MINISTRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTR\
STATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30' June 2023.

Arabia and it is the second largest bank in terms of assets. lt is
also the leading bank in Saudi Arabia in tcrms of market

capi tali zation
He has also worked as the Process Improvement Manager, at

Standard Chartered Bank Africa. As head of the Process

Improvement team, He was tasked with ensuring that the banks

implementation of new systems, products, and services was

accompanied by a high degree ofefficiency and quality customer

services. This He achieved through making business processes an

integral part of any product designs, system implementation and

even HR transformations. He also ensured that performance

management methodologies and key performance indicators were

rolled out tkoughout the bank as a basis for improving processes

and customer service. The success of his tcam lead model

initiatives especially in the banking operations areas were

replicated beyond Kcnya to other African countries principally
Zimbabwe, Cameroon, Uganda and Tanzania.

I

?
Prlncipal Secretsry
State Department for Industry

i't,
_+-

Dr. Juma Mukhwane was appointed the Principal Secretary
for the State Deprrtment for Industry in the Ministry of
Investmerts, Trade, and Industry (MITI), ln December 2022.

He is the immediate former Director General of The Kenya

Nationa[ Qualifications Authority (KNQA); from where he also

worked to support development of the African Continental

Qualificatiors Framcwork (ACQF). Dr. Mukhwana has worked

in the agriculture and higher education sectors both locally and

intemationally for many years. He holds a Bachelor's degree in
Veterinary Medicine (1993) and M.Sc. in Pharmacology and

Toxicology (1995) both, from the University OfNairobi, Kenya,

and a Ph.D. in Soil Science from the University of Wyoming in
the USA.
He has worked in top management either as a CEO, and/or as

Deputy CEO in the public and private sectors for over 20 years

Between 20ll and 2013, he worked as a Senior kcturer and

Chairman of the Depanment of Land and Water Management
(and Acting Dean, School of Agriculhre), University of Embu.

From 2013 to 2017, he served as the DePuty Commission
Secretary/Deputy CEO at the Commission for University
Education in Kenya; in charge of Planning, Research and

Development.
At the State Depanment for Industrialization, he has been

instrumental in developing and implementing policies to support
local These include the introduction of Coun

xll



tt

STRY OF IN!'ESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRY
TATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
nnual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30, June 2023.

Aggregation and Industrial parks (CAIPs), promotion of local
content in manufacturing, supporting the Buy Kenye' Build
Kenya Initiative and facilitating the revival and invigoration of
value addition in the leather, textiles and other agricultural
products. He is also spearheading expansion ofmanufacturing in
the cement, and steel; as well promoting local assembly of
vehicles and motor cycles. He represents the country in the United
Nations Industrial Development Organization (UNIDO); and is

working to promote increased manufacturing within the East

African (through EAC) and African regions (tluough the

AfCTA). His main drive lies in his efforts to improve the

conditions for manufacturing within Kenya and Africa, to bring
prosperity and inclusiveness. This is line with the Kenya Kwanza
manifesto of growing manufacturing from the current 7.204 to

15% of GDP by 2025.
Dr. Mukhwana is an accomplished lrader, passionate speaker

and powerful change agent. He has received many national and

intemational awards for his work in creating prosperity and

improving livelihoods for poor people in Africa.

Mr. Karanja Njora
Secretrry AdmiBistntiotr

Mr. Samuel Karanja Njora is a career civil servant with 20 plus
years in the field of Public Administration. He has risen up the
ranks from a junior Assistant County Commissioner (formerly
District Officer) to his current position of
S€cretaryAdministration in the State Department for Industry.

He is proficient in providing highJevel Administration support
including giving administrative direction and undertaking
responsibility for complex planning,directing, and organizing
staff to achieve organizational goals. Mr. Njora possesses good

cornmunication and people manaSement skills that have helped
develop team spirit and motivated staff in all the stations he has

worked in public sewice.

Mr. Nobby Macharia is the Ag. Industrialization Secretary in the

State Depaltrnent for Industry He joined the Ministry of
Industrialization in the year 1992 as an Industrial Development
Officer I and risen through the ranks to become a Director.

He holds MBA (EnrepreneurshiP) from the Methodist University
and Bachelor Degrec in Science - Agriculture from the University
of Nairobi.

Mr. Nobby Macharia
As. Industridizrtion Secretary

xlll



Nidplas Gakiha
Ag. Dircaor, ASro lndustrier
Director.te

Mr. Nichoas Gakiha heads the Agro Industries Directorate in the

State for Industry. His public service career includes working for
both the National and County Governments in various capacities

that includes serving at Kenya Institute of Business Training
(State Department for Trade), Productivity CenEc ofKenya (State

Department for Labour), County Government of Meru and the

State Departsncnt for Industry.
Mr Gakiha holds a Master ofScicnce Degre€ in Entreprcneurship
and a Bachelor of Commerce Degrec with a specialization in
Business Administration. He has also undertaken several skills
upgrading courses in the areas of Strategic Leadership,

Community Capacity & Rural Development, Policy formulation,
Project Management, Industrial developmcnt and SMES
Development among others.

ar
Mr. Julius Kithinji Kirima, HSC
Xf,rector oflndustries

-t

Mr. Julius Kithinji Kirima, HSC is Director of Industries Heading

Chemical & Mineral Industries Directorate in the State

Department for Industry. He holds a Bachelor of Science Degree

in Chemistry and Mathematics, Mastff of Science in
Entrepreneurship. He has risen the ranks in the civil service from
Industrial Devclopment OIIicer II in 1990 to Director of
Industries and awarded Head of State Commcndation (HSC) for
his distinguished service to the Republic of Kcnya 201l.
He has scrved previously as Deputy Dircctor of Internal Trade,

Chairman of the Technical Committee that Drafted the Anti-
Counterfeit Bill 2008, and latcr Ag. Secretary to Operationalizc
thc Anti-Countcrfeit Agcncy, Coordinator for Kenya Tradc and

Poverty Programmc (KTPP,) and Member of high-Lcvel Task

Force that negotiatcd the East African Community Common
Market Protocol. Mr. Kirima is also a Lcad Expert in
Environmental Lnpact Assessment and Audit and is trained in
Ccramic Kiln and F amon othenT

Mr. Joseph Mbeva
Director oflndustries

Mr. Joseph Mbeva is Director of lndustries in charge of
Industrialization Field services. Hold vast cxperience in industrial
matters and intellcctual property rights have started working with
the Govemment fiom 1992 to datc.
He holds a Master's of Scicnce Degree in Intellectual Properties
and a Bachelor's Degree in Science.

Mr. David K, Rono
Director ofIndustries

David K Rono is a BSC graduatc of Kenyatta and has workcd in
various capacities in both Headquarters and the Field Stations

such as Mombasa, Embu and West Pokot. He has twenty-Nine
years' experience in industrial. Matters, having bcen the Desk

Oflicer AGOA, UNIDO, Non Agriculnual Markct Access
(under WTO). Mr Rono is thc A.g Head of Engineering and

construction Industries.

MINISTRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTR}
STATE DEPARTMENT I'OR INDUSTRY
Annusl Report and Financial Stltements for the year ended 30, June 2023.
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Ms. Pcris Adema
Director KITI

Ms. Peris Adema is the current Director of the Kenya Industrial
Training Institute (KITI), Nakuru. She holds a Master's degree in
Corporate Strategy and Economic Policy.

Mr. Roy Nyagena
Ag. Director of Industries

Mr. Roy Nyagena is the Acting Director Research, Manufacturing
and Industrialization Policy Directorate in the State Department
for Industrialization. He joined the Ministry of Industry in the
year 1992 as an Industrial Development Oflicer I and risen
through the ranks to become a Deputy Director of Industries.

He holds Master of Arts degree in Rural Economics from
Gandhigram Rural University and Bachelor Degree in Commerce
from Nagpur University, India.

MS. Mary Kemunto
Director, HRM&D

Ms. Mary is DHRMD in charge of the Human Resource

Management and Development function in the State Department
from February 2023.

She holds a master's degree in Educational Administration and

Planning from the Catholic University of Eastem Africa,
Bachelor of Education from the University of Nairobi, Diploma
in Financial Management from Moi University, Higher Diploma
in Human Resource Management from Institute of Human
Resource Management.

She is a full membcr of IHRM in good standing

Mr. Timothy Gakuu, HSC
Director of Planning

-
-

t

Mr. Timothy Gakuu is the Director of Planning in the Central
Planning and Programme Monitoring Unit, Stat€ Department for
Industrialization. He holds a Master of Arts in Economics from
the University of Nairobi.

He has expcrience spanning over 25 years having worked with
various Govemment Ministries and Departrnent. Formerly
Director of Planning in Ministry of Energy, Chief Economist
Ministry of Devolution and Planning, Chief Economist Ministry
of Youth and Sports and Ag. Chicf Executive Officer of CDF
Board.

xv
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Mr. Joash Akuma
Senlor Chlef Finance OIIicer

Joash O.Akuma has 25 years ofexperiencc in the Public sector.

He has previously worked in various capacities in thc civil
service. He has previously worked as an Economist and DePuty

Chicf in various Ministries, Assistant Director before

redesignating as a finance officer. He worked as Hcad of finance

in Statc Department Shipping and Maritimc, State Department for
Trade and now State DePartment for Industry. He has

experience in finance and Plaruring from the University of
Nairobi and Jomo Kenyatta University. He Holds a Masters in
Arts and has CPA I and currently pursuing PhD at JKUAT

s"(?

, /,

CPA Emest Lukayu
Herd ofAccountinq Unit

-
I t

Mr. Emest A.Lukayu is the Head of Accounting unit for the State

Departmcnt. Hc is experienced in both financial and accounting

matters having worked in various MDAs as an Accountant for
over 2l years in various capacities.

He holds Master's degree in Business administration (MBA)
Finance, Bachelor's degree in Accounting both from Kenya

Methodist University. He is ICPAK mcmber No.4l50

xvl



NO. NAME POSITION Totsl Attendance

I Mr. Stephen K. Mbuko Chairperson Nil
2 Ms. Jane W. Muthaura Member Nil

3 Abdi Sahal Ali Member Nil

4 Mr. Simon S. Nabosa Member Nil
5 Prof. Daniel K. Tarus Member Nil

6 Dr. Jackson Bamgehrny Secretary Nil

(
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). FlduciaryOversightArrangements

e key State Department fiduciary oversight arrangements include

udit and Finance Committee activities

codrmittee performs the following duties

Reviewing and monitoring the external auditor's independence and objectivity, taking

into consideration relevant professional and regulatory requirements. In fulfilling its

duties, the committee reviews with the external auditors, the scope oftheir audit plan,

system of intemal audit reports, assistance given by management and its staff to the

auditors and any findings and actions to be taken.

Reviewing any related party transactions that may arise within the State Department for

lndustry.

Reviewing communication between extemal auditors and management including

responses on audit queries on the annual financial statement raised by the Auditor

General.

Following up on recorunendations of the Parliamentary Accounts Committee (PAC).

following shows the number of finance and audit committee meetings held during the year

the attendance of individual mernbers.

udgel Committee Activities

is the committee charged with the responsibility of implementation of the State

ent's budget and its prudent management. The duties of the committee include:

i. To review and consider the cash flow plans

tl

u

lv.

xvll



MINISTRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTR\
STATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30' June 2023'

ii. To review the utilization ofthe cash limits and corsider any changes as may be required;

iii. To review the utilization of the donor funds voted for the State Departrnent

iv. To advice the accounting officer on the challenges related to the budget implementation

v. To review and recommend the reallocation ofpayments

vi. To review and approve the submission ofthe pa)ment returns, payroll IPPDs, pending

bills and A-I-A rehrms for the State Department and recommend actions to be taken

vii. To participate in sector working groups

viii. To review budgets, supplementary estimates and performance ofbudget against actual for

the State Department in consultation with the Heads of Directorates.

The following shows the number of budget committee meetings held during the year and the

attendance of individual members

NO NAME POSITION 3/St202t 1t4t2021 t5t612023 Totd ettendance

I Mr. Karanja Njora Chairperson 3

2 Mary C.Kcmunto Mcmber x 2

3 Mr. Joseph Mbeva Member x 2

4 Mr.Nobby Macharia Member x 2

5 Mr.Timothy Gakuu Member x x I

6 Joash O.Akuma Secretary 3

7 Philip Maitha Member 3

8 Nancy Muya Member x 2

9 Joseph Mbeva Member 3

l0 Julius Kirima Member x 2

l1 Lydia M.Munialo Mcmber 3

t2 Roy Nyangena Member x 2

l3 Nelson O.Mose Member 3
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Strte Deprrtment for Industry Ileadquarters

P.O. Box 30418-00100

NSSF Building, Block A, 17th Floor

Bishops Road, Capital Hill

NAIROBI, KENYA

State Department for Industry Contacts

Telephone: 020 -27 3 I 53 l -9

Bmail: ps@indusrialization.co.ke

DS.mOl l.com

Wcbsitc: www.industrization.so.kc

Stste Department for Industry Bankers

Ccntral Bank of Kenya

Haile Selassie Avenue

P.O. Box 60000 - City Square 00200

NAIROBI, KENYA.
Indcpendent Auditors

Auditor General

OIIice of the Auditor General

Aaniversary Towers, Univercity Way

P.O. Box 30084 - GPO 00100

NA,IROBI, KENYA.

Priocipal Legal Adviser

The Attomey General

State Law Office
Haambee Avenue

P.O. Box 401 l2 - City Square 00200

NNROBI,KENYA.

3. t of Governance
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Top Leadership Commitment

The Ministry of Investments, Trade and Industry put in place govemance structure to ensure

integrity, transparency and accountability in all its decision-making levels. At its top management,

Cabinet Secretary and Principal Secretaries head each State Department; and are responsible for

Policy direction, coordination and overall supervision. The State Department top leadership

consisting ofthe PrincipaI Secretary, Secretary Administration, Ag. Secretary Industrialization and

Directors have committed to the highest standards ofcorporate gov€mance, maintained high moral

and ethical standards, put in place sound and transparent processes and procedures for conducting

business that has ensured efficient and effective service delivery.

Management Committees established

i. Management Board Committee

The State Department put in place the Management Board Stn:chrre bringing together the Cabinet

Secretary, Principal Secretary, Head of Dtectorates and Chief Executive Olficers of the various

State Corporations under it. This was meant to streamline the operation of the State Department

as a whole for efficient and effective service delivery. ln the period under review, the committee

met to review implementation of programmes and projecs, aligning the budget to the Bottom-up

Economic Transformation Agenda to create synergy in public service delivery.

ii. Human Resource Managemetrt Advisory Committee (MHRMAC)

The State Department has put in place the MHRMAC for administration and management of

human resource functions which include: Recruitrnent, selection and appointrnent; Performance

management; Promotions; Confirmation in appointrnent; Training and Development; Training

Irnpact Assessment; Management of skills inventory; Establishment and Complement control;

Payroll management; Deployment; Promotion of values and Principles of Public Service;

Recommendation for secondments and unpaid leave; Recommendation for retirement under 50

years rule; Recommendation for retirement on medical grounds; Recommendation for re-

designation; Recommendation for renewal ofcontract; Discipline; and Pension administration.
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iii. MinisterialPerformanceManagementCommittee(MPMC)

State Department has put in place the MPMC to Co-ordinate the Ministerial and State

ent Performance through: Undertake quarterly review of implementation of Strategic

lans and Performance Contracts; Ensure linkage between InstitutionaI Performance Contract and

erformance Appraisal System; Ensur€ that the overall assessment of employee performance is

ithin the context of instinrtional performance as evaluated tkough staff Performance Appraisal

ystem; Ensure that the performance ofall offrcers is evaluated and feedback on performance is

ayed in writing at the end of the year; Hold quarterly performance review meetings; Consider

rmance reports from various departments within the Ministry and make recommendations for

provcment; Review cases of appeals on appraisal ratings between supervisors and appraisees;

ake recommendations to the Authorized Officer on the application of Rewards or Sanctions;

lop and implement the intemal monitoring and evaluation and reporting system; and Ensure

t the integrity and credibility of the overall process of rewards and sanction system is

feguarded and maintained at all times

Audit Committee

Audit Committees has been seup to provide oversight on the public financial management

tems for the Ministry/State Department. The Committee has helped in improving internal

ntrol system, risk management, the intemal and external audit process, and compliance with

and regulations. The Ministerial Audit Committee held its last meeting in the year 2022. The

it Committee could not hold meetings in 22123 financial year due to budget constmints. The

it Committee third term in ofhce expired on 5th January 2023 and the State Department is

tly in the process of recruiting members and the chairperson to the Audit cornmittee

Risk Management

State Departrnent developed the risk management policy framework to enable the

gement to identify and mitigate all risks faced by the State Departrnent, which could affect

achievement of its strategic objectives, service delivery targets and accountability to public. In

tion, the heads of departments and risk champions were trained to spearhead implementation

the risk management policy. Departrnents within the State Departrnent are in the process of

ducing risk registers. The State Department in its efforts to maintain transparency, ethical
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standards and compliance with the risk management strategy is in the proccss of introducing

conllict of interest registers ir all its d€parhents in the month of February.

hrblic participation activities

The State Department has continued engaging various stakeholders in its policy development and

implementation. sector associations including Kenya Association of Manufacturers (KAM),

Kenya Private Sector Alliance (KEPSA), Kenya National chamber of commerce and lndustry

(KCCNI) and Federation of SMEs.
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TATEMENT BY THE CABINET SECRETARY

manufacturing sector is one of the key drivers for economic growth and development. The

r plays a critical role in contributing to economic growth and generating employ,rnent as the

try moves towards realization ofthe aspirations ofVision 2030. Its overall goal is to increase

ontnbution to Gross Domestic Product (GDP) by at least 15% by 2021; increase level of
gn direct investments; this will propel Kenya towards becoming one of Africa's major

strial hubs. The sector has a high potential of investment attraction, employment creation,

expans ion, stimulus for agricultural sector growth and provision of forward and back ward

es in all other sectors of the economy. The sector plays a strategic role in technology and

vation as it is a major platform for diffusion of new technologies to other sectors of the

my

er the manufacturing pillar, the priority interventions implemented during the period under

ew included : Construction of Industrial Research, Laboratories, Nairobi -KIRDI South B;

of RIVATEX machinery; Lusigetti Apparels and Value Addition Center;rzatron
elopment ofNyando and Karichen Apparels and Value Addition Centers; County Aggregation

Industrial Parks (CAIPS); Infrastructure and civil works development at KITI; Modernization

o MC's Foundry Plant & CNC & Fabrication Workshop; Cotton Development Subsidy and

ension Support; Protection oflndustrial Property Rights; Kenya lndustry and Entrepreneurship

ect; Development of a standards and accreditation infrastruc ture; and Acquisition of Regional

-Coturterfeit Agency Exhibit Warehouses

erms of Budget allocation to the Ministry (and more specifically, the State Department for
ustry), three programmes are been implemented namely:

. Industrial Promotion and Development programme with the objective of promoting and

facilitating industrial development through value addition, industrial infrastructure,

industnal training and technology upgrading.
. Standards, Quality Infrastructure, and Research programme with the objective ofproviding

standards, quality infrastructure and industrial research for improved industrial
pcrformance.

. General Administration, Planning and Support Services.

key achievements for the FY 202212023 incbde:
Draft Scrap Metal Amendment Bill and Regulations developed;

Modemization of RIVATEX Machinery - modern machinery acquisition and installation

has reached 98 percent level of completion;
3,186 cotton bales sourced locally for apparel & textile processing and 18 tors of cotton

sceds distributed to 3,500 farmers for cotton production;

Acquired the textile machinery for Karichen Apparel Value Addition Centre;

Constuction ofNyando Apparel Value Addition Centre;

Modemization of NMC's Foundry Plant & Fabrication workshop - 35.21 percent level of
completion of modemization of foundry plant, fabrication plant and Galvanising plant;

licenses issued to 468 scrap metal dealers to control trading and processing of scrap metal

and protection of critical national infrastruchre and thefl ofprivate property;

,i,

r
Yr
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EAPCC produced 152 tons of Clinker and 311 tons of cement to support the construction
s€ctor;
KITI trained 4004 students on industrial skills;
KENAS Accredited 24 new Conformity Assessment Bodies;
572 new standards developed, 6,403 products certifred under SMEs and 17,404 products

certified under large firms to support the manufacturing sector;

98E patens, utility models and industrial designs registered;

5,838 inspections undertaken to control trading in counterfeits goods;

Kenya lndustry and Enhepreneurship Project (KIEP) provided 4l SMES with diagnosed

review for technical and financial funding;
Construction of Industrial Researclq Laboratories (KIRDI Nairobi) - construction works,

cladding and building services and management installations reached 80 percent level of
completion;
Infrastructure and civil works development (KITI) - completed construction of Women

Hostels and Walkways.

vlll.
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BUDGET ALLOCATION

The Budget estimates for the FY 2022123 were Kshs 3,950,805,540 consisting Recurrent Kshs

2,671,828,873 and Development Kshs 1,278,976,667. The State D€partuent was to expend the

et ofKshs. 64,441 under the follo threes 3

BUDGET AIL(XATIOI{ BY PROGMMMES

hd{r , o.,.rotlMt n.l

t5x

!g

2L.nha l(' $ttoir JclkG

K$rs
328,099,651 43,851.379371,951,030Gcncrsl Admioistrstion Plan[ing 8nd Support Scrvic.s

r.289.86r.467 98422,469r.388,288,936Indusrial Drvcl@mcnt and Invcstmcnts
t.905.598,324 284,961,2502,t90,565,s7 4Standards and Busincss Incubation

127.,It.O993523564,413,950105,540
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Budg.t Utilisation Cayments)
The State Departrnent spent Kshs. 3,523,564,441 against an approved budget of Kshs.

3,950105,540 representing absorption oft97o. Utilisation ofthe budget was carried out through

various activities (economic classifications) as shown in the chart below:

Budget Utilisation as Per Economic ltems

680/,

Usc of Sood! snd scNiccs
tt/.

er1t'ng Issues

ing inllation, fluctuations in forex and the ongoing geopolitics and alignments in the global

mic power bases has continued causing disruptions in the global trade value chains in the

ufacturing Sector, leading to slow movement of goods, shortages of critical imports of raw
terials and increasing cost of doing business. The Ministry through policy interventions and the

Contracting process has ensured continuous performance improvement mechanisms

ve been adopted to ensure that the manufacturing sector activities retums to normalcy

pleEentation challenges

Manufacturing Sector faced a number ofchallenges, which include:

i.) lnadequate industrial infrastructure forinvestrnent attraction;

ii.) High cost of energy and operations;

Rapidly changing consumer needs, preferences and quality requirements

Low awareness on Indusrial Property Rights and weak protection of indigenous

knowledge;

Inadequate Skills and Capabilities in Manufacnring sector

Inadequate Financial Resources for programs and projects implementations;

Limited access to frnancial services for industrial development;

lnadequate market information and access;

iii.)
irr.)

v.)
vi.)

vii.)
viii.)
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ix.) Prevalence of Counterfeit, Dumping aod Substandard goods; Increased vandalism of
national critical infrastructure.

Slstr

HON. MOSES I( KURIA, HSC
CABINET SECRETARY

MINISTRY OF INVESTMENT, TRADE AI\ID INDUSTRY.
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. ST^ATEMENT BY THE PRINCIPAL SECR-ETARY / ACCOUNTING OFFICER

udget performance against actual amounts for current ycar

the period under review, the State Department absorbed 92 percent ofall the allocated funds

er the recurrent budget 84 percent ofGoK development budget and I I percent ofthe Donor
bilized funds

achievements for State Department for Industry

Draft Scrap Metal Amendment Bill and Regulations developed;
Modemization of RIVATEX Machinery - modern machinery acquisition and installation
has reached 98 percent level of completion;
3,186 cotton bales sourced locally for apparel & textile processing and l8 tons of cotton
seeds distributed to 3,500 farmers for cotton production;
Acquired the textile machinery for Karichen Apparel Value Addition Centre;

Construction of Nyando Apparel Value Addition Centre;
Modemization of NMC's Foundry Plant & Fabrication Workshop - 35.21 percent level of
completion of modemization of foundry plant, fabrication plant and Galvanising plant;
licenses issued to 468 scrap metal dealers to control trading and processing of scrap metal
and protection ofcritical national infrastnrcture and theft ofprivate property;
EAPCC produced 152 tons of Clinker and 3l I tons of cement to support the construction
sector;
KITI trained 4004 students on industrial skills;
KENAS Accredited 24 new Conformity Assessment Bodies;
572 new standards developed, 6,403 products certified under SMEs and 17,404 products

ccrtified under large firms to support the manufacturing sector;
988 patents, utility models and industrial designs registered;
5,838 inspections undertaken to control trading in counterfeits goods;

Kenya Industry and Entrepreneurship Project (KIEP) provided 4l SMEs with diagnosed
rwiew for technical and financial fi.rnding;
Construction of Industrial Research, Laboratories (KIRDI Nairobi) - construction works,
cladding and building services and management installations reached 80 percent level of
completion;
Infrastrucnre and civil works development (ICTI) - completed construction of Women
Hostels and Walkways.

x
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Emerging issues

i. High Cost of Doing Busrness

ii. Current geopolitics and alignments in the global economic power bases

iii. Green Manufacturing and Circular Economy.

Key risk management strategies.

The State Department has put in place measures and mechanisms for identifying, assessing,

controlling, monitoring and mitigating risks by instituting adequate intemal controls. The risk
management corunittee was constituted to drive the risk management activities

The risk management processes and strategies adopted have helped the State Department in

identifying its strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats in its operating environment. This

has led to:
i. Improved service delivery to the citizens
ii. Securing and Protection of govemment assets

iii. Efficient procurements services and payment ofsuppliers
iv. Reduced incidences of comrption incidences
v. Fast-tracking implernentation of priority programmes and projects

tmplementation challenges and recommended way forward.

During the period under review the following challenges slowed down the implementation of
programmes and project geared towards increasing the manufacturing sector contribution to the

GDP and creation of more employment opportunities

l.
ii.
iii.
iv.

vi.
vii.

viii.
ix.

Inadequate fi nancial resources
Inadequate industrial infrastructure
Unavailability of Industrial Land
High cost ofenergy and operations
Rapidly changing consumer needs, preferences and quality requirements

Inadequate Skills and Capabilities in Manufacturing sector

Limited access to financial services for industrial develoPment

Counterfeit, Dumping and Substandard goods

Increased vandalism of national critical infrastructure.

Z-
3- - \\ .- J-*,2 "

DR.ruMA MUKHWANA, PhD, HSC

PRINCIPAL SECR"ETARY / ACOUNTING OFFICER

STATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY.
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6, Management Discussion and Analysis

The Manufacturing Sector Performance
The manufacturing sector contribution has fatly remained below the l0 percent mark as compared

to the agriculture sector which they have both backward and forward linkages. over the period,

the sector contdbution has averaged 7%o lo the gross domestic product as depicted in the table

below.

Scctor Contribution tc, the C[)t'
30

2-)

20

15

10

5

0

2A]3 2074 2015 2016 2011 2018 2019

r Agriculrure r ManufacturinS

2020 2021 2022

The Manufacturing Sector Vs Agriculture Sector Contribution to the GDP for the period 2013 to

2023

To improve the performance of the sector under the Medium Term IV, the State Departsnent has

planned the roll out of key projects to increase the sector's contribution from the current level of

7 .8Yo percent to 15 percent by 2027 , increase the competitiveness of the Kenyan manufacfured

products; attract more Domestic and Foreign Inveshnents; increasing the volume of Kenyan

manufactured exports; and creating over one (l) million additional jobs. The projects planned

include: Development of Industrial Clusters; Development of County Aggregation and lndustrial

Parks; Manufacture of Machinery, Automotive, Equipment and Parts; Integrated Iron and Steel

Mill Plant, Scrap Metal and Mineral Value Addition; Manufacture of electrical and electronics

products; Industrial Research, Technology and Irnovation Programme; and Skills Enhancement

Programme for Industrialization. Other programmes and projects include Accreditation and

Standardization Programme; Promotion of Industrial Property Rights Protection; Manufacture of
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ATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR
2022t2023

troduction

line with the Ministry's Vision, Mission, and Key Strategic Objectives, State Department for
ustry has identified key priority areas under the Manufacturing Pillar of the Big Four Agenda

implcmentation. The strategies will help in the attainment of the key result areas outlined in
sector performance standards, which include manufactured export growth and Global
petitiveness; Contribution to economic growth; Industnal Growth and Development;

plolment, prosperity and equity; Resources for industrial and Trade Development; and

dership and integrity (governance)

key development objectives include:
To increase manufacturing, sector contribution to GDP to l5%o;

To improve product competitiveness;
To improve business environment;
To attract Domestic and Foreign Direct Investrnents;
To Generate Employment opporhmities;
To Mobilize resources for Industrial Development; and
Stengthen instinrtional capacity for service delivery.
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Progrecc ofthe Big Four Agende programmes and Interventionr under the Mrnufacturing Sector

Summary of projects/?mgrammes, key performance targets and achievcrnent for the Financial Year 202112022
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3,l86bslcs

No. of farmsrs
scnsitiz.d on
cotton Droduction

SDI
RIVATEX
Farmer Groups

toLnD022
30t6t2023

3,50O farmers

sDt
RIVATEX
Farmct GrouDs

totnno22
3016D023

l8 tons of sc€dsAmount of sccds
distributed !o
fErmc{s (tonnca)

SDI
RIVATEX
Farmcr Groups

toLnn022
30t61243

1,145 lims of pcsticidcs

Farmcrs providcd with
input -sccds, pcsticidcs
and cxtansion scrviccs
offered

Amollnt of
pcsticidcs
distributad to
farmqs Oitrrs)

Cotton cxtcnsion
Subaidy
RIVATEX E.A
Ltd

Thc programmc aims at
cxpanding thc cottqr
produaion mainly through
provision of frrm inputs
(sccds, fiftilizas & c8pscity
building) to fsmcrs,
cxtcn3ioD scrvices and
coqdinrtc lhc rcvival of
ginn€f,ics for proccssing of
colton which will fccd into
thc modcmizcd fsctory

SDI
NMC

totnDorS
30t06,n026

35.21% Icvcl of completionEnhanccd produclion of
industrirl sparc pans &
machincrv: R&D and

Crmpletion ratcModcrnization of
NMCa Fouodry
Plant 8t thc

To upgradc and modcrnizc
foundry plsnt for incE !€d

a
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truction Materials; Green Manufacturing Programme; and Pharmaceutical Development

the MTP IV Plaru it is anticipated that manufachrring will gain further impetus from

rtunities provided by the AU Agenda 2063, Africa Continental Free Trade Area (ACFTA),

C Vision 2030, EAC Industrialization Policy and Strategy, and UN Agenda 2030 on

able Development Goals and equitable economic development in the spirit of"leaving no

behind" and further export opportunities under bilateral negotiated market access frameworks.
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7. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT/SUSTAINABILITY

REPORTING

The State Department for Industry is established under the Executive Order No. I ofJanuary 2023

with the mandate of: Industrial Policy and Planning; Buy Kenya Build Kenya Policy and Srategy;

Promoting Standardization in Industry and Quality Control; Promotion and oversight of the

Development of Special economic zones and Industrial Parks; Kenya Property Rights Policy
(Patents, Trade Marks, Service Marks, and Innovations); Promotion ofvalue Addition and Agro-

Processing; Textile Sector Development; Leather Sector Development and Promotion of Value

Chain; Oversight and regulation of Scrap Metal Industry; Promotion and Development of Medium

Business Enterprises; Industrial Training and Capacity Development; combat counterfeiting trade

and other dealings in counterfeit goods; and Oversight, Administration and Enforcement of the

local Content Policy.

The State Department undertook the following activities under the Corporate Social Responsibility

for the year ended 30rh June 2023:

i). Sustainability strategy and profile -

The State Department put in place the Management Board Structure bringing together the Cabinet

Secretary, Principal secretary, Head of Directorates and chief Executive officers of the various

State Corporations under it. This was meant to streamline the operation of the State Department

as a whole for efficient and effective service delivery.

The Management Board met once in €very month on every first Monday of the month. This built
synergy and effective coordination in the implementation and delivery of planned programmes

and projects. The reporting and follow up is done to ensure all agreed actions point are

implemented within the stipulated timelines. Issues of good governanc€ and accountability have

been adopted by the Board to ensure that all Institutions/Departrnents have zero tolerance to

corruption practices, ensure pa)'rnent of outstanding pending bills and reduction of Audit queries

by promptly addressing all the Management Issues raised by Intemal Audit Department Unit and

Office of the Auditor General.

The State Department has put in place mechanisms of engaging with the Development Donors

with a view of supporting in the implementation of Industrial programmes including technical

Assistance. Some of the support received include World Bank - on KIEP Program, Stanbic Bank

- on ICT equipment; UNIDO - on Country Partnership program; Msingi East Africa - on Textile
Development Program; JICA - on OVOP program, and TMEA. The Department is in negotiation

with the German Government through GIZ on support to establish Centre for Entrepreneurship.

The Department has signed financing agre€ment with the World Bank to support the

implementation of the Kenya Industry Entrepreneurship Project, which is aims at suPporting

innovation and productivity improvement for select firms/SMEs.
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ii). Environmental Performance

State Department undertakes the reviewing and screening of Environment Impact

ssessments and Strategic Environmental Assessment for all industrial prqects at both the

ational Level and County level. This is meant to reduce the adverse impact ofprojects and their
ts on the environment and livelihoods.

terms of implementing the greening initiative and progressing towards achievement ofthe l0%
e cover in the country, the State Department planted over 9,000 trees in the FY 202212023. The

where planting of trees was carried out include County Industrial Development offices and

Kenya Industrial Training Institute Nakuru

iii).Employee welfare

Accounting Officer developed and implemented employee welfare and wellness programmes

the workplace to improve employee productivity, motivation, team working and working

nt for the staff at the Headquarters and at all the Field Stations. These programmes

luded:
i.)

ii i.)

iv.)

v). Merket Place Practices
State DeparEnent is spearheading the implementation of public procurement preferences

ting special groups of women, youth and persons with disabilities:

i.) Department use the Government Advertising Agency to place for its
advertisement for delivery ofvanous categories ofgoods and services;

ii.) Conducted evaluation of tenders for goods and services in a transparent manner

adhering to all laid down procedures;

iii.) Awarded Kshs 32.55 million tenders of the total procurement budget to the

Youth, Women and Persors with Disabilities;
iv.) Organized capacity building of three groups through training on: govemment

procurement procedures; the requirements for accessing govemment procurement

opportunities; and the specific opPortunities;

Undertook prequalification of suppliers and special groups that provided the

framework for selection of merchant and suppliers;

Undertook continuous update of the prequalification framework; and

Cleared the pending bills with the available resources provided and within
reasonable timelines.

Medical camp for the staff for general check-up, HIV testing and counselling,

Cancer awareness among others;

Training of Departmental AIDs Committee:

Undertook regular distribution ofcondoms to staffin various offices including fietd
stations; and
Facilitated leave management for all the employees including leave commutation,

bereavement leave where possible.

v.)

vi.)
vii.)
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v). Community Ergsgements

The State Departrnent worked with the private sector associations/ communities in advocating for
implementation of favourable business envtonment to facilitate the industrial development. These

associations included; Kenya Private Sector Alliance, Kenya Association of Manufachrrers, Jua

Kali Association, SME Federation of Kenya, Scrap Metal Dealers Associations and Council of
Governors among others.

Engagement areas for these associations included: elimination of cases of vandalism of rutional

criticil infrastuctue and theft of private property; taxation of business proposals, adoption of
greener production technologies by firms/SMEs, production /energy /labour sosts reduction

proposali, work envitonment/employmeit terms and related issues, business opcration facilitation

in terms of raw materials imported among other areas.
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ATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBII-ITMS

tion 8l (1) of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 requires that, at the end of each

ial year, the Accounting Officer for a National Govemment entrty shall prepare financial

ts in respect ofthat entity Section 8l (3) requtes the financial stat€ments so prepared to

a form that complies with relevant accounting standards as prescribed the Public Sector

ting Standards Board of Kenya from time to time

Accounting Officer in charge of the State Depar&nent for Industry is responsible for the

tion and presentation ofthe State Departrtrent for Industry's financial statements, which give

and farr view of the state of affats of the State Departrnent for lndustry for and as at the end

financial year (period) ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining

The

the

of

ad financial management arrargements and ensuring that these continue to be effective

hout the reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose wrth

ble accuracy at any time the financial position of the State Deparhnent for Industy; (ni)

des , irnplementing and maintaining intemal controls relevant to the preparation and fair

tion of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material

tements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the State Department

for ; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) making

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances

cowrting OfEcer in charge of the State Departrnent for Industry accepts responsibility for

te Departnent for Industry's financial statements, which have been prepared on the Cash

B ethod of Frnancial Reporting. using appropnate accounting policies rn accordance with

onal Public Sector Accountng Standards (IPSAS). The Accounting Officer is ofthe opimon

that State Departnent for lndustry's financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of

State ent for Industry's transactions during the frnancial year ended June 30, 2023, and of

the S Departnent forlndustry's financial position as at that date. The Accounting Officer charge

of the te Departrnent for lndustry further confirms the completeness of the accounting records

for the State Departrnent for Industry, which have been relied upon in the preparatron ofmaln
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thG State Departnent for Industry's financial statements as well as the adequacy of ttre systflis of

intemal linancial control.

The AccounUng Ofncer in charge of the State Deparunent for Industry confirrns that the State

Dcpartnent for Indusfy has complied fully with applicable Govemment Regulations and the terms

of extemal financing covenants (where apphcable), and that the State Department for Lndustry's

fuAds received during the year under audit were used for the eligible purposes for which they were

intended and were properly accounted for. Further, the Accounting Officer confirms that the State

DCparEnent for Industry financial statements have been prepared in a form that comPlies with

relcvant accounting 5tanduds prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board of

Konya.

Agproval of tle financial statements

The State Departnent for lndustry financial stat€ments were approved and sigrred by the Accounting

Officer on 2423'1'

Dr. Juma Mukhwana, PhD, HSC

PR.INCIPAL SECRETARY

CPA Emest LukaYu

Head of Accounting Unit

ICPAK Member Number 4150
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PORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON STATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
R THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

P deilrraLe

td
A.

w your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
arc fatly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,

ccounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
n the financial statements.

B eport on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
mpliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
idelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
rcten t, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the Government

chieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. port on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
ich considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal

perations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
anagement environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those

Qltarged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.
i

An fnmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relefant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
govQtnance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
yea{ under review.

The fthree parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
res nsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 ol the Constitution, the
Pub c Finance Management Acl, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 201 5. The three parts of
the ort when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General

RE RT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qua ihed Opinion

lha
set

audited the accompanying financial statements of State Department for lndustry
on pages 1 to 31, which comprise of the statement of assets and liabilities as at

30J he,2023 and the statement of receipts and payments, statement of cash flows
S ent of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended and a
sum ary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in
Rap o,/ tlre .4uclitor-Genantl t)n Stetc l)epertnant /or lndustn,/itt'thc.t'cur ended 30 June, 2023



accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of lhe Constitution of Kenya and Seclion 35
of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations, which
to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matter described in the basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the State Department for lndustry as at 30 June, 2023
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Cash Basis) and comply with the
Public Finance Management Act, 20'12.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Transfer to Other Government Entities

The statement of receipts and payments and as disclosed under Note 6 to the financial
statements reflects Kshs.2,402,549,809 relating to transfers to other Government Units.
lncluded in this amount is Kshs.221,899,811 in respect to Appropriation-ln-Aid (AlA).
However, examination of receiving entities records revealed AIA collection of
Kshs.1 ,084,520,355 during the year resulting to unreported amount of Kshs.862,620,544.
Further the excess AIA was not surrendered to the exchequer contrary to Regulation 84
of the Public Finance Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the transfers to other
Government Units of Kshs.2,402,549,809 for the year ended 30 June, 2023 could not be
confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the State Department for lndustry
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. Pending Bills

Notes 17.1 to the financial statements reflects pending bills amounting to
Kshs.106,695,480 which comprises of Kshs.58,7 16 ,112 for the State Department and
Kshs.47,979,368 for Kenya lndustrial Training lnstitute which were not settled in the year
under review but were carried forward lo lhe 202312024 financial year. The pending bills
balance includes an amount of Kshs.32,210,566 which relates to 202112022 and earlier
financial years.

The State Department is at risk of incurring interest and penalties with the continued delay
is settling the long outstanding bills. Further, failure to settle bills in the year to which they
relate will adversely affect the implementation of the subsequent year's budgeted
programmes as the pending bllls form a first charge for that year's budget provision.

Report of the Auditor-Cenerql on State Depqrtment for Industry /or the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Budgetary Control and Performance

he statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget

fd actual on comparable basis of Kshs.3,950,805,540 and Kshs.3,479,827,738
ispectively resulting to an under-funding of Kshs.470,977,802 or 12o/o of the budget.
lirrritady, the State Department expended Kshs.3,523,564,441 against an approved

ldget of Kshs.3,950,805,540 resulting to an under-expenditure ot Kshs.427,241,099 or
[ % of the budget

budget underperformance and under expenditure affected the planned activities and
ay have impacted negatively on service delivery to the citizens

y opinion is not modified in respect of these matters

Audit Matters

K$ audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
spnificance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
r(port in the year under review.

er Matter

resolved Prior Year Matters

the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
F ancial Statements, Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public

ources and Report on Effective of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and
ernance. The issue had been addressed. However, the Management is awaiting

commendations of the Parliamentary Committee

PORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
SOURCES

clusion

required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution and based on the audit procedures
iformed lconfirm that nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
hlic resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

is for Conclusion

T e audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
A dit lnstitutions (lSSAl) 4000. The Standards requires that I comply with ethical

uirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the
a ivities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements

mply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the
dit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
rlclusion.

t ofthe Auditor-General on State Department /itr Indust1' [<tr the year ended 30 June, 2023
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REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and based on the audit
procedures performed, , I confirm that nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls) 2315 and 2330. The Standards require that I plan and perform
the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of internal
controls, risk management and overall governance were operating effectively, in all
material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of the Management and those Charged with Governance

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Cash Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as the Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the
State Department's ability to continue sustaining its services, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting
unless the Management is aware of the intention to terminate the State Department or to
cease operations.

The Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, the Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the State Department's
financial reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors
compliance with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective
processes and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation
to governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of
the control environment.

Report of lhe Auditor-Generql on State Deportmenl for lndustry y'r the year ended 30 June, 2023
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ditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
ements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
to issue an auditor's report which includes my opinion in accordance with the
isions of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in
pliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level

hssurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls
always detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

$regate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
grs taken on the basis of these financial statements.

I

hddition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
riformed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,

4ncial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in

rhpliance with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied
{n effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution

{ submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of lhe Constitution.

F rther, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
pliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
ternal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in

a rdance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the PublicAuditAct, 2015 and submit
th audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of

internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls,
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a

ition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
ponents does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused
rror or fraud in amounts which would be material in relation to the financial statements
g audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the

n al course of performing their assigned functions.

use of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or
m tatements and instances of noncompliance. Also projections of any evaluation of
e eness to future periods are subject to the risk that contncls, may become
tn quate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
po ies and procedures may deteriorate.

As art of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional

Ju ment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also

entify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

a
u

n

fi

a
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detect

ether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
ose risks and obtain audit evidence which is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
sis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
ud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

rgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

of the Auditor-Aenerdl on State Deporlmenl for lndustr), for lhe year ended 30 June, 2023
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions, which may cast significant doubt on the State
Depa(ment's ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the State
Department to cease to continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner which achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the State Department to express an opinion on the financial
statements.

. Perform such other procedures, as lconsider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls which are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters which may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA BS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

'11 January,2024

Report ofthe Auditrtr-General on State Depurtnenl for Ind stry for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH

2023.

Other Recci

e accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements form an integral part

the financial statements. The State Department for lndustry financial statements were

ved o ?1 \ 2023 and signed by:

Juma Mukhwana, PhD, HSC
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Head of Accounting Unit
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RECEIPTS
4 ,257 ,569 ,405I 3,2r6,463,942Transfers from National Treasury

34,814,5054r ,463,9852Proceeds from Sale of Assets
775,330,39822r,899,At I3

5,067,7143O43,479,A27,734TOTAL REVENUES

PAYMENTS

406,724,320364,285,4534Compensation of Employees
430,332,897379,97 t,611(Jse ofgoods and services

4.003,36 r,8356 2,402,549,aO9Tmnsfers to Other Govemment Units
4,338,5067 35,31O,982Social Security Benefits

24s,324,r278 341,446,547Acquisition of Assets

5.O90,O81,6843,523,564,441TOTAL PA}'MENTS

(22,367 ,37 6)(43,736,703)SURPLUS/DEFICIT

)t)/ ),1)),)





FINANCIAL ASSETS

Crsh rnd Cash Equivslents
34J62 424 9t.727 .374Bank Balances 9A

Cash Balances 9B

34.362,424 9t,127,37 4Tolal Cash And Crsh Equivslents

l0 | ,30't ,tzr I,3 t4,57I
Accounts Receivables - Outstanding Lnprest and

Clearence Accounts

3s,669,546 93,041,952TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS

LESS: FINAITICIAL LIABILITIES

ll 23,199,416 19,358,834Accounts Payables - Deposits

12,470,130 73,683,rr8NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

97.02t,844t2 73,583,1l7Furd balance b/fwd
(9?r354)Prior y€rr rdiustments t3 (17,476,284)

(43.736,703) (22,367,376\SurDlus/Defict for th€ yetr
12.470.133 73,683,117NET FINAI\'CIAL POSSITION

NISTRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRY
ATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
nual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30, June 2023.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES A AS AT 3OTH JUNE 2023.
I

bccounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements form an integral part
l

of financial statements. The State Departrnent for Industry financial statements were

ved on 3 .- \t* r-.z-1 2023andsi gned by:

ftyJ-a^!P>
CPA Ernest Lukayu

Head of Accounting Unit

ICPAK Member Number .4150

Z-

Dr fma Mukhwana, PhD, HSC

2

P IPAL SECRETARY



MINISTRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRY
STATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
Annual Report and Financigl Statements for the year ended 30' June 2023.

IO. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements form an integral part

of the financial statements. The State Deparunent for Industry financial statements were aPproved

on 3 2023 and signed bya-\\ -- )-o l--'1

Dr. Juma Mukhwana, PhD,HSC

PRINCIPAL SECRETARY

fu,t
CPA Emest Lukayu

Head of Accounting Unit

ICPAK Member Number.4l 50
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CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVMES

Reccipt! for operrting income
4,25'I ,569 ,405I 3 ,2t6,463,942Transfcrs from National Treasury

775,330,3983 221,899,81IOthcr Rcceipts
5.032,t99,8033.43E363,7s3

Pr for o rl
406,124,3204 364,285,453Compensation of Employccs
430,332,89',75 3',t9 ,97 | ,6t IUse ofgoods and scrvices

4,003,361,8356 2,402,549 ,809Transfers to other Govcmmcnt Unlts
4,338,5067 35,310,982social Sccurity Bcncfi ts

4,E44,757 ,5583,1t2,rr7,E55

Adiuraed for:
(9't |,3s4)l3 (17,476,284)Prior Yrar Adiustmcnts
(980,795)'1,457

(1,098,663)
t4
l5 3,840,5E2

Dccrcasc(Incrcasc) in Accounts reccivablc: (outstanding imprest

Incrcasd(Decrcasc) in Accounts Payablc: (dcposits and retcntion
242.6t75s3 1E5,091,434

CASIIFLOW TROM IIYVESTINC ACIIWIES
34,814,50541,463,98sProcccds from Salc of Ass€ts

(24s,324,127\t (341 ,446,587)Acquisition of Assets
(2t0,sw,622)(299,ytz,@z',)Nca crsh flows fom Invcstlnq Activities

(57 36/.9491 (25,4rE,rt7)UIVALENTNET INCREASE IN CASII AND CASH
ru.145,5609t.727374Crlh rnd cqth equlvrlent .t BEGINNING ofthe yegr
9t.72737414362A24C$h rld crlh equlvalcnt .t END ofthe yctr



b d c=-d t4cY.

RECEIPTS
Exchcqucr rclcascs 6,r 54.540.000 (2.596.734 -460\ 3.557.805.540 3.216.463.942 341.34r.598 900/"
Procacds fiom Salc of Asscts 33,000.0@ 8.000.000 4l -000.000 41.463.985 (463-985) t0to/"
Otllcr Rcceipts 939.000-000 (5 87,000.000) 352.000.000 22r,899.8r r.00 r 30.100.r 89 $r/"
Totrl Recelptt 7,126,s40,000 (3.r 75.734.4601 3,950.E05.540 3.479.427 .73E 470,977,E02 a8./.

Pal/mcnt!
Compcnsation of EmDloyccs 501.510.000 0I l.617.r 20) 391.892-880 76428s.4s3 27.607.421 91./"
Usc of goods and scrviccs 451.478,925 (t9.761.5t7\ 417.57 r,408 379.971.61I 3'1.699.797 9tyo
Treltsfcrs to Othcr Govcrfilcnt Units 4.73?.120.000 o.164245 -833\ 2_572.81 4.167 2.402.549 .809 170.324.3s8 93vo
Social S.curity Bcncfits 30.637.919 4-8t7 -120 35.455.039 15.310.982 144.058 100%
Acquisition of Asscts 1.397,831.156 (864.921,r l0) 532.9 r 2,046 341,446.581 191.465.459 64V"
Cr.nd Totll 7. t 26.540.000 (3.175.734.4601 3.9s0.E05.sil{) 3.523.56..411 427.241.099 a9./.
Surplur/D.ficit (43.736.703) 43.736703

11. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON O['BI]DGET AND ACTUAL AMOT]NTS FOR T'Y 202212 3

Notes:
i. Under collection of Other receipts of 63% was a result of under collection of AIAS due to economic challenges and change in the

supplementary budget for various pamstatals (SAGAS)
ii. Underutilisation in Acquisition of Assets of 640% relates to KIEP project budget that was unutilised due to delay in implementation

of the project.
iii.The changes between the original and final budget are beca
imposed by the goverunent that resulted into budget cuts.

The State Department for lndusfy financial statements were

use ofdecrease in budget of KShs 3, 17 5,734,460 due to austerity measues

,tl
upprou"a oo O.'[ lt, f 1.--- \ 2023 andsigned by:

Dr. Juma Mukhwana, PhD CPA Emest Luka

ICPAK Mmber Number.4l 50
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12. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON Otr'BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOtnilS :REC[ RRENT FOR Fr 2022123

Notes:
i. Overutilization in Proceeds from sale of Assets of t 019/o was a result of over collection of AIAs.The excess collection

has already been swept to the exchequer account
ii. Undcrutilization in other receipts of 630/o was a result of under collection of AIAs due to economic challenges and

change in the supplementary budget for various parastals.
iii. Overutilization in Acquisition of Assets of 109olo was as a result change in the supplementary budget.

The changes between the original and final budget are because of reduction in funding by Exchequer ofKShs 953,161,127 and thus
reallocation of the budget was necessary.
The State D?artment for lndustry financial statements were approved on 2023 and signed by:

Dr. Juma Mukhwana, PhD,HSC
PRINCIPAL SECRETARY

CPA Emest Lukayu
Head of Accounting Unit
ICPAK Member Number.4150
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b d tsdlc YoRECEIPTS
Exchequcr rclcascs 2.652.990.000 (37 4.t6t .t27\ 2,278,828,877 2. r93.092.095 85,736.778 96%Procccds from Salc of Arsets 33,000,000 8.000.000 4 r.000.000 41.,161.985 461,9E5 t0tv"Other Rccciprs 919,000,000 (5E7,000,000) 352.000.000 221,E99,81 t.00 (130,100,r 89) 63YoTot.l Rccciptt 3,624.990.000 (953,16r.t27) 2,67r,828,E73 2,,r56.,a55.t9r (4t,899,426) 92v.

PAYMENTS
Compcnsation of EmDloyccs 503.5 t0.000 0I1.617.120) 391.892-880 364,285,453 27.607.427 93Vo
Usc of goods 8nd sewices 419,478,925 (39,76?,517) 379,6?1.408 343.350.980 36,320.428 900/.
Transfers to Othcr Government Units 2.667.950.000 (801.672.500) 1.864.277.500 I,710,619.809 153.657.69r 92yo
Social Sccurity Bencfits 30.637.9r9 4,8 t 7,120 35.455.039 35.310.982 1,14,058 r00%
Acquisition of Asscts 1,453,156 (2.921.1t0) 572,U6 579,596 (47.550) to90/"
Cr.tld Totrl 3.62{.990.000 (9$.r6t.127) 2,67t.t28.873 2,45,r.t46.E20 217.682.053 92./.

Surpl u./Dcfici t 2.309.071 (261,5tr.479)



MINISTRY OF INYESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRY
STATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
Annuat Repon and Financial Statemenrs lot the year ended 30, June 202j.

13. STATEMENT OI COIilPAf,IgON OS B{DGET ATS ACTUAL AX('I'IITS:

Notes:

i. Under Utilisation of80% in exchequer releases was as a result of lack of funding by the National Treasury
ii. Underutilisation in Acquisition of Assets of 640lo was as a result oflong procurement process.

fts shanges between the original and final budget are as a result of reduction in funding by Exchequer ofKShs 2,722,57 3,333 and
thus reallocation of the budget was necessary
The State Departrnent for Industry financial statements were approved on 3u-l 'l 

-z- z7 2023 and signed by:

Dr. Juma Mukhwana, PhD, HSC
PRINCIPAL SECRETARY

CPA Emest Lukayu
Head of Accounting Unit
ICPAK Member Number.4l 50
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RECEIPTS
Ercb$l- r.L.aaa 3.50 I .s50.000 (2.222.573 333\ | 21t.97 6.66'l l,023J71,E48 255.604.8 t9 80./"
Tottl R.c.lpa 3.y)tss0.000 0"221573333) \27t.n6.61 lo23.37t.t4t 255.50,r.t19 80%

Prvmarta
(Jsc of ,pods lnd scrviccs 38.000.000 38.000.000 36.620.631 | 319.369 960/o

TnBfcrs to Olhcr GovcnrrEit Units 2.069. t 70.000 fl.360.573J33) ?08.596.667 691.930.000 16.666.667 98./"
Acquisition of Asscts 1394380-000 (662.000.000) 532Jt0.000 340.866.991 l9l,513,0 r0 64./o
Cnnd Tdl 3.501550.000 (L222.513333\ t.27t.vta667 1,069.at7 .522 209,5s9,(x6 41./.
Srrplut/D.liclt (,t(045.77,1) 46.(Xs.774



MINISTRY OF III{VESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRY
STATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
Annual Report aad Financial Statements for the year ended j0, June 2023,

14. BUDGET EXECUTION BY PROGRAMMES AND SUB.PROGRAMMES

General Adminlstradon Phnning rnd Support 371J51.030 328.099.651 42.42424t
371,951,030 328,099,651 42.424.24t

r 388288.936 1.289.866.467 100.794.191Indurtrhl Development rnd Invettments
1.040.741.984 95 1.642.158 89.208.771Promotion of Industrial Development and Investments

338.224.109 I 1.585.420Promotion of Industrial Trainine 34't,546,952
2.190565574 r.90s598324 285.73r.658Stgnderds gnd Business Incubation

488.320.000 452.341.582 35,978.418Standardization. Metrology and conformity asscssment

929,515,5'7 4 128,384,542 201,895,.140Business lnancing & incubation for MSMEs
772;t30,000 724,872,200 47,857,800Industrial Research, Devclopment and Innovation

3.950.805.540.00 3.523.s64.44r 428.950.09r.00Grand Total

The State Department for Industry financial statements were approved on 3.-\r-2t,23 2023 and signed by

Dr. Juma Mukhwana, PhD,HSC

PRINCIPAL SECRETARY

CPA Emest Lukayt
Head of Accounting Unit
ICPAK Mernber Number.4l 50
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TRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRY
ATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
nual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30' June 2023.

IGMFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

principle accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set

below:

1. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

furancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Cash-basis Intemational Public

Accounting Standards (IPSAS) as prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards

(PSASB) and set out in the accounting policy note below. This cash basis ofaccounting has

b supplemented with accounting for; a) receivables that include imprests and salary advances

b) payables that include deposits and retentions

P

financial statements comply with and conform to the form of presentation Prescribed by the

SB. The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

f,.eporting State Department for Industry

financial statements are for the State Departrnent for Industry. The financial statements

pass the reporting as specified under section 8l of the PFM Act 2012 and comprise of the

tu development projects implemented being implemented by the State Department, which

Project -Kenya Industry and Entrepreneurship Project (KIEP) - World Bank

funded project.

Reporting Currency

ial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (KShs), which is the functional and

ctrrency ofthe Govemment and all values are rounded to the nearest Kenya Shilling.

8



MINISTRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTR}
STATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
Annual Report and Finsncial Statements for the year ended 30' June 2023.

4. Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out in this section have been consistently applied by the State

Department for Industry for all the years presented.

a) Recognition of Receipts

The State Department for Industry recognises all receipts from the various sources when the event

occurs and the State Department for Industry has actually received the related cash'

i) Tsx Receipts

Tax receipts are recognized in the books of accounts when cash is received. Cash is considered as

received when notification oftax remittance is received. (Check ifthis policy is applicable to State

Department for Industry

iD Transfers from the Exchequer

Transfers from the exchequer are recognized in the books ofaccounts when cash is received. Cash

is considered as received when payment instruction is issued to the bank and notified to the

receiving State Department for Industry.

iii) ExternalAssistance

Extemal assistance is received through grants and loans from multilateral and bilateral

development patners.

Grants and loans shall be recognized in the books of accounts when cash is received. Cash is

considered as received when a paynent advice is received by the recipient State Departrnent for

Industry or by the beneficiary.

In case of grant/loan in kind, such grants are recorded upon receipt of the grant item and upon

determination of the value. The date of the transaction is the value date indicated on the payment

advice. Similar recognition criteria are applied for loans received in the form ofa dlrect payment.

During the year ended 30rh June 2023, there were no instances of non-compliance with terms and

conditions, which have resulted in cancellation of extemal assistance loans.

9
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STRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRY
TE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
usl Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30, June 2023.

iv) Other receipts

include Appropriation-in-Aid and relates to receipts such as proceeds from disposal ofassets

sale oftender documents. These are recognised in the financial statements the time associated

is received

ition of paymcnts

State Department for Industry recognises all payments when the event occurs, and the State

for Industry has paid out the related cash

Compensation of Employees

Salaries and wages, allowances, stahrtory contribution for employees are recognized in the

period when the compensation is paid.

Use of Goods and Services

Goods and services are recognized as payments in the period when the goods/services are

paid for. Such expenses, ifnot paid during the period where goods/services are corsumed,

shall be disclosed as pending bills.

) Interest on Borrowing

Borrowing costs that include interest are recognized as payment in the period in which they

are paid for.

Repayment of Borrowing (Principal Amount)

The repayment ofprincipal amount of borrowing is recogruzed as payment in the period in

which the repayment is made.

Acquisition of Fixed Assets

The payment on acquisition of property plant and equipment items is not capitalized. The

cost of acquisition and proceeds from disposal ofthese items are treated as payments and

receipts items respectively. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for

nil or nominal consideration and the fair value of the asset can be reliably established, a

conta transaction is recorded as receipt and as a payment.

A fixed asset register is maintained by each public State Departrnent for Industry and a

sunmary provided for purposes of consolidation. This summary is disclosed as an

annexure to the financial statements.

D

)

l0



MINISTRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRI
STATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
Annual Report and Financial Statcments for the year ended 30' June 2023.

5. In-kindcontributions

In-kind contributions are donations that are made to the State Department for Industry in the form

of actual goods and/or services rather than in money or cash terms. These donations may include

vehicles, equipment or personnel services. where the financial value received for in-kind

contributions can be reliably determined, the State Department for Industry includes such value

in the statement ofreceipts and payments both as receipts and as payments in equal and opposite

amounts; otherwise, the contribution is not recorded.

6. Third Party Payments

Included in the receipts and payments, are payments made on its behalfto third parties in form of

loans and grants. These payments do not constitut€ cash receipts and payments and are disclosed

in the payment to third parties in the statement ofreceipts and payments as proceeds from foreign

borrowings.

7. Cash and Cash EquiYalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call

and liquid investments with an original matudty of three months or less, which are readily

convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various

commercial banks at the end of the financial year.

a) Reslriction on Cash

Restricted cash represents amounts that are limited./restricted from being used to settle a liability

for at least twelve months after the reporting period. This cash is limited for direct use as required

by stipulation.

Amounts maintained in deposit bank accounts are restricted for use in refunding third party

deposits. As at 30th June 2022, this amounted to Kshs 23,199,416 compared to Kshs 19,358,834

in prior period as indicated on note I l. There were no other restrictions on cash during the year.

8. Accounts Receivable

For the purposes ofthese financial statements, imprests and advances to authorised public officers

and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year are

tr€ated as receivables. This is in recognition of the govemment practice where the imprest

payments are recognized as payments when fully accounted for by the imprest or AIE holders.

11
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NISTRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRY
TE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
ual Report and Financiol Statements for the year ended 30, June 2023.

is an enhancement to the cash accounting policy. Other accounts receivables are disclosed in

financiaI statements

9. Accounts Payable

the purposes of these financial statements, deposits and retentions held on behalf of third

es have been recognized on an accrual basis (as accounts payables). This is in recognition of

c

vernment practice ofretaining a portion ofcontracted services and works pending fulfilment

o bligations by the contnctor and to hold deposits on behalf of third parties. This is an

emcnt to the cash accounting policy adopted by National Govemment Ministries,

ents and Agencies. Other liabitities including pending bills are disclosed in the financial

ts

10. Pending Bills

P ng bills consist ofunpaid liabilities at the end ofthe financial year arising from contracted

or services during the year or in past years. As pending bills do not involve the payment of

in the reporting period, they recorded as 'memorandum' or 'off-balance' items to provide a

of the overall net cash position of the State Department for Industry at the end ofthe year.

the pending bilts are finally settled, such payments are included in the Statement ofReceipts

a)'ments in the year in which the payments are made

1. Budget

get is developed on a comparable accounting basis (cash basis except for imprest and

d

for

on

SU

A

its, which are accounted for on an accrual basis), the same accounts classification basis, and

same period as the financial statements. The original budget was approved by Parliament

e 2022 for the period l"'July 2022 to 30th June 2023 as required by Law and there wer€ two

tary adjustments to the original budget during the year

parison ofthe actual performance against the comparable budget for the financial year under

has been included in the financial statements

t Development Projects are budgeted for under the MDAs but receive budgeted funds

a3 fers and account for them separately. These transfers are recognised as inter-State

ent for Industry transfers

Comparative Figures

necessary, comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

gured to confomr to the required changes in presentation.

l2



MINISTRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTR}
STATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
Annual Report and Financial Strtements for the year ended 30, June 2023'

13. Subsequent Events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year-end with a significant impact on the

financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2023.

14. Errors

Material prior period errors shall be corrected retrospectively in the first set offinancial statements

authorized for issue after their discovery by: i. restating the comparative amounts for prior

period(s) presented in which the error occurred; or ii. If the error occurred before the earliest prior

period presented, restating the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets/equity for the

earliest prior period presented. Dunng the year, errors that have been corrected are disclosed under

note 13 explaining the nahrre and amounts.

15. Related Party Transrctions

Related party relationships are a normal feah[e of commerce. Specific information with regards

to related party transactions is included in the disclosure notes.

16. ContingentLiabilities

Section 148 (9) of the PFM Act regulations 2015 requires the Accounting officer of the State

Department for Industry to report on the payments made, or losses incurred, by thc State

Department to meet contingent liabilities as a result ofloans during the financial year'

A contingent liability is:

a) A possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed

only by the occurrence or non-OccluTence ofOne or more uncertain fuhrre events not

wholly within the control of the State DePartment for Industry; or

b) A present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

i) It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service

potential will be required to settle the obligation; or

ii) The amount ofthe obligation carurot be measured with sufficient reliability'

Some ofcontingent tiabilities may arise from litigation in progress, guarantees, indemnities.

Letters ofcomfort/ support, insurance, Public Private Partnerships, The State Department for

Industry does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details ofany contingencies in the

notes to the financial statements unless the possibility ofan outflow ofresources embodying

13
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N{IMSTRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRY
STATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
Annual Report and Financial Strtements for the year ended 30, June 2023.

16. NOTES TO TEE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I Exchcquer Releases

During the year, the ministry was to reccivc KShs 3,565,805,540; howevcr, it rcccivcd 3,216,463,942

fallins short by KShs 349,341,598.

2 Proceeds from Sde of Asscts

These borrowings are done locally within the General Goverrunent and local financial

institutions and creditors

3 Other

Relstes to AIA Collected by SAGAS

4 Compenndon of Employecs

Compersation of employees comprise of rernuneration paid to employees in rehtm for the work

done. It includes sound contributions made the State on bchalf of its

I t142661481,08 I 978,@2Total Exchcqucr Relcases for quarter I
541,169,9286143t'1,999Total Exchcqucr Rclcascs for quarter 2
686,496,322576,5 ,834Total Exchcquer Rclcascs for quarter 3

t ,549,636,707923,573,018Total Exchcqucr Rclcascs for quarter 4
4.257,569,a053.2t6,163,912TOTAL

34,814,5054l F63985
R.ccipts from the Salc of Invcnlorics, Slocks Itd
Commoditics

34, d505,11,a63,9t5TOTAL

775330398221,89,81 IAdminfukativc Fe6 .td CharcB coll..Ld 8s AIA
775J30,39r221,E99.8rrT(}TAL

258J56,8412tr,69s248Basic salariG of D.rmanent crnployees
148367179152,590205Pcrsonal allowarccs paid as oart of salary
ry72.1,32035,1,285.,153TOTAL

l5



STRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRY
6 TE DEPARTMENT FOR II\DUSTRY

ual Report snd Financial Statements for the year ended 30, June 2023.

5 se of C'oods and Services

se the total value of ds and services consumed.e

6 Grants rnd Trrnsfers to other Government Entities

rbr to self - reporting entities ln the yerr. The above transfers were mgde to the following
repordng eltities in the yeer:

Ws ve confirmed these amounts with the recipient entities and attached these confirmations as

33302, 229217,275Uti rl cs, supplics ard serviccs
1275,024t944,983Eo nunication, supplies ard services

32,103,947t7,927131Do stic travcl and subsistancc
10296,690I,675,488Fot an Eavel and subsistencc

698,528 6232420nf adveltising and information supplies & services,rir ti
t28446,36099 274,051Rcr of assets
25,Ut,02t12,698,356tn ng exDeBes

9.969,1414.49t.2Mtlliw srDolics ard scrviccsHo
86,002,953t34,531,657So. rliscd raterials and serviccs

)i 18,756,8869,6t2,839r altd celcral supplies ard services
4550t 22658,753,988o0 oD€iatrIlg exDcnses

ri

a I1,663,3862,597,554
nor
&r

E msinEmrcc - vehiclcs srd otlEr trsnsport

ncnt
3,129,9801,879,542tl t maintaMrEc - ottEr assets

12,011,7504,6f8,105)il ard hbricanrs
430J32,E9?379,971.61lILr,

2,302,330,396I,710,6r9,809
)h cod6 2630100, 2630200, 26,ttl,tt:0. m<l5o0.
gto- zazomo- zazozoo. zazosoot

I ,701 ,03 r ,43 9691,930,000ca il"t"a tiri
'1.003J61,t352.402.549,809o lL

rLrildn ro sei;rr rnd scr
r0.000.000 194132.5@184.432.5006ff,vcrt-'{^,tL'it

I 1,050,000I1.050,000s.,t5[..] c.o*il
38.000.000 r66,122,500128.r22.500l$maril Mrchini& ComDlcx Unitcd

159J95.000t 02.500,00057.095,000ffi[Irocasim zors rrm;
15217,5N152n,5@G5bo,pmio zoa r

255230.000 459,972,5002M,142,500I&dA hdurrid Etrtar Umit n
125.000.000 5J1J72,500426,372,500!nd

208210.00016 t 100.00047.030,000RIVATEX
250239.998250139.998Kttrvl lcsdition scMc.'i
15,t35?.500154J57,500Iornl |tc.rch tlcvcloDnEd l,lltitulc
221.899.8 t I221.899.81IAlAll

2.40r.519.E09691.930.000I.?r0.519.609rbrll

an to this financial statemenl
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7 Social Security Benelits

Expenditure relates to gratuity paid to officers whose contract had expired during the financial

period under review

8 Acquisition ofAssets

These represent payments made to acqute propety, plant and equipment during the year; which

have been fully expended in the year ofpurchase in line with the accounting policies

Purchalc of ialiscd and

9 Cesh and Bank Accounts

4J38J06353 r0,982Covctnm€rn Dension ard rltircrnenr bcnefits
4J3&s0635Jr0,9E2TOTAL

526,887532,U6R.furbishrnent of Buildinr6
3224,?4547,550Purchasc ofOfficc Fumiturc atd Cqpral ll

89,NsJ7994,000,000CorNtruction atd Civil Works
462120

15r2u295246,866.,91
Rrscatcll Shrdics, Project Prcparatioq DcsiSn &
SuDervision

245)24,127141,146,5nTOTAL

9t,727,11421,380,308Bank Accounts (Note 19 A)

Cash on hand (Note 19 B)

91,72737421,3E0,30t
Total
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: Banl Accounts

cash h hand

in hrnd should also be analysed as follows:

ccourts Receiveble

Dtt PayEble

general deposits and retention monies are l0olo retained by the State Deparbnent on behalf

parties that offer services to the State Departrnent

I

I

K$t
t6 to7 71113!o,15tol ,a,,t ol K.nw. E103EO23.KShi

al Dart ol X.^tu. E70t6980 Kshs t08,469
r02l?J@ 7Jll.lttd AatofKenvd. E7l ta82l-Kslt xl!
9.711,711 ,t,t6o.El?ol R.al ol K.nw. i066l0t)2.KShs
12.9i2.1t6 12.02r.JI6coaiercial BaatJ I I 2971716 KIl l.trJht

qL127374y,352,121

in tlard - Hcld in dotrrstic currcrrcy
AL

t0 {L

746400ffrEnl [@rcsts
t.307,121 568,178:t susDcnsc

l3lil.57t
'L

lJfi,l2l

t00%ler onc year r,307,r21 r00% t,314,578

1,314,57Elsl 1,307,121

of

l8
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7,333,1110,217,300Deposits

12,025,s1612,982,116Deposits -KITTI

4l9 5823,199,4 l6Total

% of the TotalPrlot llY% of the Totalcurrent F/YAglng analysis-SOl

Undei one Year
0.17,598.00Aia /Sale Tenders

16.61,595,350.00mmeion & lmp. PrRe ional ln
9.81,000,000.00Retention Mone
0.435,400.00Tender Deposit
7.4148,000.00Contributions Towards Ps Office
8.2841,300.00Countv Aggregated lndustrial Parks

1-2 years
3.9400,000.00Africa lndustrialization

04,000.00Aia /sale Tenders

2-3 years
1.8180,000.00Afforestation And Greening Proiect
4.7480,000.00Directors Fees
4.4449,735.70Retention Money

Over 3 years
4.4454,245.75Transfer From Old Cbk
0.18,000.00Nairobi lnt. Trade tair
9.81,000,000.00lnvestment Park
6.6675,000.002nd Manufucturing Expo

04,2t7.OOUnspent Aie
2.7273,267.65Salary Oeduction

19.21,965,686Africa lndustrialization
s.8594,500.@2nd commonwealth Sme Trade Summit

63.536.5 6,488,552.103,7 28,648.OOTotal

% of the Tot.lPrlor tY
%of the
TotalCurrent FYAgeing Analysls-KlTl

67%8,710,851.00Under one year

334,271,255.OO1-2 Years

02-3 Years

0Over 3Years

3tx4,2t1,255.0O67%8,710,861.0Ofotal

l9
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nd Balance Brought Forward

fund balances were brought forward from FY 2021/22. The bank balances were however
back by exchequer as shown in note 13

rlor ear A ustments

usted balances are not carried down on the face of the financial statement. They relate to

6,507,723 Recurrent unspent cash swept to the exchequer and kshs.222,162 relates to AIEs

surrendered during the year. Kshs. 746,400 govemment imprest for FY 202112022

in the current year

adjustsnents affect the Statement of Assets as they result into the reduction of the fimd balance
bro t forward

I ncrease)/ Decrease in Receivable

91,721,174 r t7,145,51 IEaU accouno
49crld in had

r J 14,578 3t3,781Roldvables - Outstaldinc ImDrcsts

fl9.358.834) (20.457.497\Palables - Doposits
9?,021.844rdrhl- 71,6t3,1lE

Bu (L6.507.723) 7 5,219,651 (637.5221Iccount Bal8nccs 91,721,374

C.tl , (49)r hand

R€c' (968,562) 346,016 (331.783)ab16 1,3t4,578
Aoc, (19,358,834)nts Payables (19,358,834)

(l1.476.2U\ 56,206,833 (971.354)?3,683,117I
a

t

ot, I,314,578 333,783ring Accounts Receivables as at l'r July

cds ng Acoounts Reccivables as at 30fi June t,30'1 ,r2t lJ r4,578
(980.795)chl, ,ge in Accounts Receivables 7,457

20
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15. Increase/ @ecrease) in Accounts Payable

16. Related Party Disclosures

Related party disclosure is encouraged under non-mandatory section ofthe Cash Basis IPSAS.

The following comprise of related padies to the State Department for Industry

i) Key management personnel that include the Cabinet Secretaries and Accounting

Offrcers

iD Other Ministries Departments and Agencies and Development Projects;

iiD County Govemments; and

iu) State Corporations and Semi-Autonomous Govemment Agencies

Related party transactions:

r8260,17119,358,834Opening Accounts Payables as at l '' July

19,358,83423,t99,416Closing Accounts payables as at 30h June
(1,098,663)3,840,582Change in Accounts payables

Trensfers to relrted prrties

4,003,361,8352,402,549,809Transfers to SCs and SAGAs

99,523,56r200 ,843 ,14'7Transfers to Development Project

4,r02,885J962,603392,9s6Total Tr8nsfers to related parties

Transfers from relsted osrties

4 ,257 ,s69 ,4053,216,463,942Transfers from the Exchequer

4,251,569A05Total Transfers from relst€d parties 3,2t6,463,942

2l
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er Important Disclosures
: Pending Accounts Payable (See Annex 1)

L7 Pendirg StaffPayables (See Annex 2)

No ffpayables existed during the year

t7 Other Pending Payables (See Annex 3)

r7.1 rternd Asslstance

c rhstruction-l(ITI Civil works
32.683.33632.683.336S rtply of coods
15,296,03258,062,166H i*orical bills 73,358,198
47.979,36832.683,336 58.062,166T riaI-KIII 73,3s8,198

t2.751,014L{ply of goods-SDI 12,380,014 37 r,000St

40.s77,772.5036,043,252.50Sr Lfoly of rervices-SDI 4,534,520

s,387,352.605,387,325.60Sl
H

Lfoly of services-SDI
slorical

58.716,112.1041.801.577.s0? ,6FSDI 16.914.534
106.695.480.1058,062,166G rhND TOTALS 90.272,732 74,484,9t3.50

12,982,r1649,517 ,004 48,560,404An
,al

,4unts due to third
Its-KITTI

12,025,5r6

10,217,300.0019,262,950 16,378,968A!
pat

{unt
tibs -

s due to third
SDI

7,333,3t8

&,939,372 23,199,416To 19.35E.834 68,779,954

I

t62,349,347 63,687 ,7 57Extffrral assistance received as loans and grants

162,349347 63,6E7,7 57ToSl

Ig
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r) External rssistrnce rehting loans rnd grsnts

b) Undrswn external sssistance

c).Classes of providers of externsl 8ssistance

d. Purpose and uce oferternel esslstance

63,687,757162,349,347Extemal assistancc received as loans
63,687,757162349347Totd

4,315,211,3994,5t5,734,704Undrawn extemal assistance - loans
4.5t5.7t4.704 43752rt399Totd

63,687,757162.349,341Intcmational assistance organization
63,68'1,757t62,349,347Totd

20;171,63213,500,000Compensalion of Employees
229,t72,890 I 18,941,604Use of goods and services

4,317,300Transfers to Other Governrnent Units
r39,713;236246,990,1mTOTAL

23
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ondngent Liabilities

ent liabilities cxisted during the ycar.
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19. PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP
RECOMMENDATIONS

OF PRIOR YEARS AIJDITOR'S

The following is the summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor, and management comments

that were provided to the auditor.

1589
Motor Vchicle3 $ithout Title

Documents

Thc Accountlng Olticcr
Appcrred bcfore Nrtiond
Ar&mbly Ptblic Accounlt
CoEmlttce (PAC) on l3o
April 2023 for crrmiartion of
the rcport of the Auditor
Gcocrrl on rccounts offor tlc
Nationrl Govcrnmeot for F"Y

cnded 306 Jutre 2021.
recommcBdrtiotrs of the PAC
lrc rwdted, thut Dot rclolvcd

The Ministr-y of
Industrialization has over timc
undergonc changcs during

Govcrnment reorganization. In

thc last few ycars, the ministry

has bccn rcorganizcd into

various Statc Dcpartmcnts cach

with Accounting Officers.

During the reorganization,

motor vchicles wcre sharcd

among thc State Dcpartments

without thc transfc! of
logbooks. Duc to thcsc changcs

thc original copics of thc

indicatcd rcgi stration cannot bc

traccd.

Out ofthc pool of 78 vchicles,

5 vehiclcs havc registration
ccrtificates while 3 vchiclcs

bclonged to othcr Statc

Dcpanmcnts and Agcncics

namely; Statc departmcnt for
Mining (GKB l36v), Kcnya

lcathcr Devclopment Council
(KCP 236A) and Export

Proccssing Zoncs Authority
(KCP 273A). The 3 vchiclcs

havc sincc been suEcndcred to

thcir rightful owncrs.)

Annex 4, the summary of fixcd
asscts rcgistcr rcflccts a total
historical cumulative cost of
asscts of Kshs.390,303,20
Howevcr, the balancc cxcludes 78

motor vehicles (36 motor vchiclcs
at thc Headquartcrs 8nd 42 motor
vchicles at thc County lndusbial
Devclopmcnt Ofliccs) with an

cstimatcd valuc of
Kshs.185,080,000 and

Kshs.94,200,600, rcsPectivcly.
Records provided indicated that
out of thc pool of 78 motor
vchiclcs, 75 motor vehicles did
not have logbooks or any
rcgistration documcnts and

thcreforc it rras not possiblc to
dctcrminc thcir owncrship status.

Managemcnt explained that, the
original registration documcnts
for the motor vchiclcs could not
be haccd duc to the rcorganization
of thc Ministry of
Industsialization into various
State Dcpartmcnts. Although,
Managcment had requcstcd for
copics of thc registration
documents from thc National
Transport Safcty Authodty
(NTSA), thc logbooks had not
bccn rcccivcd.ln thc abscncc of
thc logbooks, it was not possiblc

to coofirm owncrship ofthe motor
vehiclcs.
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The State Departmcnt for
Industrialization through a

lcttcr dated 166 December

2O2l Rcf;
MITED/SDI/TRA/8/I
rcqucstcd the National

Transport and SaGty Authority
(NTSA) for vcrification of
vehiclcs owncd by the Ministry
of Industry-State Departmcnt

for lndustrialization. The

Authority rcspondcd through

lencr Ref: NTSA/C/RT/0O5/2
VOL.I dated 2'n lvr.c 2022

and provided a list of motor
vchiclcs owned arld rcgistercd

undcr thc Ministry of Industry-

the Statc Departmcnt for
Industrialization. Out ofthe list
providcd by the Authority
(NTSA), thc following wcre

noted;

57 vehicles arc owncd

and rcgistcrcd undcr
thc Ministry of
Industry- the State

Dcpartment for
Industrializatio[ and

can be traced.

13 vehicles are

rccorded under the

Statc Department for
Industrializrtion
motor Vchicle
Inventory but not

rcgistcrcd undcr thc

Statc Dcpartment.

Through a lcttcr datcd 246

Octobcr, 2022, Rcf:

MITED/SDUTRA/8/I, thc
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Statc Dcpartmcnt wrotc to thc

NTSA rcqucsting for

idcntification of ownership of
thc 13 vchicles Wc arc a

waiting for the Authority's
rcsponsc on thc samc.

Furthcr, a lcttcr datcd lod
Jrnuary 2023 REF;

MITED/SDI/TRA/E/1, by the

Statc Departmcnt to NTSA
requestcd for thc issuancc of
duplicatc copics of rcgistration

ccrtificates for thc 57 vchiclcs

which had bccn confirmcd to

bclong to thc Statc Department

for lndustrialization. We have

sincc rcccivcd 56 duplicatc

registlation ccrtilicates.

Control sndBudgctrry
Pcrlormltrce1590
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Th€ Accounting Officer
Appcared before Nrtional
Alrcmbly Priblic Account!
Committcc (PAC) on l3rh
April 2023 for cxaminstion of
thc rcport of ahe Auditor
Getrcrrl on rccoutrt! offor abe

Nrtional Govcrnmetrt for tr"Y

cnded 30|r June 2021.
recommcndatiotr! of tbe PAC
rre rwsited, thur not lesolved

The under expcnditure was duc
to Lack of cxchequcr from thc
National Trcasury for Kcnya
lndustry & Entrcprcneurship
(KIEP) projcct as a resuk ofthc
slowdown of activitics due to
proposcd restructuring process

and also most thc Statc
Corporation (SAGAS) ncvcr
attained 100% of thc Actual
Appropriation In Aid (AlA)
collccted duc Covid- t9 othcr
cconomic challenges.

Thc State Department reccivcd
Exchequer receipts totalling
Kshs.4,5 34,617,601 against an
approvcd budget of
Kshs.6,626,795,985 resulting to a
shortfall of Kshs.2,092,1 78,384 or
32Yo of the approved budget.
Similarly, actual expcnditurc
amountcd to Kshs.4,569,89?,965
against the approvcd budgct of
Kshs.6,626,795,985 resulting to
an under absorption of
Kshs.2,056,898,020 or 3lY"
which occurred mainly undcr
transferc to othcr govcrnrnent
units. The Management attributed
the undcr absorption to dclays in
Exchequer relcases by The
Natioml Trcasury. The shortfall
in budgeted reccipts and under-
absorption implies that thc overall
goals and objcctivcs of the Statc
Departmcnt wcrc not achievcd as

planncd.

I Pcoding Bllls
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Th. Accounting Ofliccr
Apperrcd b.forc Nrtioul
Alrcmbly Ptblic Accourat
Committec (PAC) on 136
April 2023 for cxamlnrtior of
ttc rcport of the Audlor
Gencrd on eccouuts offor 6c
Nationrl Govcrnmena for FY
ctrdcd 30d Jure zfirl.
recommeldatlons of the PAC
rre rwrited, thur lot resol*d

Out ofthc pending bill balancc
of Kshs 90,272,732 the Statc
Dcpartmcnt has paid Kshs
26,475,896 rclating to Kcnya
lndustrial Training Institute.
The Statc Dcpartrncnt was not
in a position to clcar thc cntirc
amount of pending bills duc to
thc &ustcrity mcasures

introduccd at thc onsct of thc
Finar,cial ycat 2022123

Pending Bills
Notes l8.l and 18.3 to thc

financial statements reflects
pending bills amounting to
Kshs.90,272,732 which
comprises of Kshs.16,914,534 for
the State Department and
Kshs.73,358,198 for Kcnya
Industrial Training Institute that
were not settled in the ycar under
review but wcre carricd forward to
thc 202212023 financial ycar. Thc
pending bills balancc includes an

amount of Kshs.30,720,699 which
relatcs to 2020/2021 and catlier
financial ycars.

No plausiblc cxplanation was
provided for non-payment of thc
pcnding bills bcfore the qnd ofthc
financial year. This was contrary
to Rcgulation, 42(lxa) of thc
Public Financc Managcmcnt
(National Govcrnmcnt)
Regulations, 2015 which statcs

that debt scrvicc paymcnts shall
be a first chargc in thc
Consolidatcd Fund and thc

Accounting Oflicer shall ensurc
this is donc to thc cxtent possiblc

that thc Govcmment does not
dcfault on dcbt obligations.

Failurc to scttle bills in thc ycar to
which they rclatc will 8dvcrscly
affect thc implcmentation of thc
subsequent ycar's budgeted
progratnmes as the pcnding bills
form a first charge for that year's
budget provision.

The AccouDting Olllccr
Appcrrcd bcforc Ntdcml
Atrembly Ptblic Acco.ntt
Committce (PAC) on l3t
April 2023 for cnmlartilr of
tbc rcport of the Audltor

It is truc that we reccivcd the
cxchcquers from Thc National
Treasury on 4th July 2022, thc
rcquisitions was done on timc.
(Scc Appcndix lx-Exchcquqr
requcsts).Thc sctivitics wcrc on

Late Exchequer Releases
Thc statcmcot of rcccipts and

payments reflccts cxchcqucr
rclcases of Kshs.4.257,569,405
which as discloscd in Notc I to thc
fmancial stalemcnts, includes an

15?2
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General o[ rccounE offor the
Nrtional Covernme[t for FY
cnded 30tt June 2021.
recommendrtions of the PAC
ire swrited, thu! not resolYed

going thus it ncvcr affcctcd the

servicc dclivery.
amount of Kshs.458,369,160
received on 4 luly, 2022. This was
contrary to Scction l7(2) (b) of
the Public Finance Management
Act,20l2 which statcs that,
payment from the National
Exchequer Account should bc
done without unduc delay on all
amounts that are payablc for
public services.

Thc delayed exchequcr relcases

may have affccted thc State

Departmcnt's ability to
implement its planncd
programmes and possible

underutilization of thc budget,
resulting to negativc impact on
delivcry ofserviccs to the public.

In thc circumstances, the late
Exchcqucr releascs affected thc
planncd activitics of thc State

Departmcnt and impactcd
ncgativcly on servicc dclivery to
thc public.

The Accouotiog Ofricer
Apperred beforc Nrtional
Alsembly Piblic Account!
CoDmittce (PAC) on l3b
Aprll 2023 for Gxrmlnition of
the report of the Auditor
GeDerd on rccoutrt! offor the
NstioDd Governmetrt for FY
cnded 30tt June 2021.
recommendetioos of tbe PAC
rr€ rwrited, thus not resolved

Thc Intcmal Audit function
carried out two (2) Audit
rcvicws at Kcnya Industrial
Training lnstitutc (KITI) as per

the arurual work plan for the
ycar. Further, thc Accounting
officcr requested the lntcmal
Audit unit to carry out an

Audit rcvicw on grants sent to
RIVATEX.
At the timc of the Audit, thc
rcports had not becn futalized
as wc rrqc waiting for
rcsponscs from lhc
managemcnt.
The Managem.nt submitted
thc responscs but the
Committec did not mc€t und€r
thc year ofAudit due to budget
constraints

Fsllure to Provide lEternrl
Audit Rcport!
As prcviously rcported, thc
i[tcmal audit teports for thc Statc
Departmcnt wcre not Providcd
for rcview and it was thereforc
not possiblc to ascertain whcther
the intcmal audit function had
givcn an assurancc on the statc of
the risk managcmcnt, intemal
control and govcmance within
the State Departmsnt as required
by thc Regulation 160(l ) ofthe
Public Finance Managcmcnt
(National Govcmment)
Rcgulations, 2015.

Further, Managcmcnt did not
providc thc Audit Commiftcc
minutes for audit, contrary to

I 93
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Approval of the finrncial statements

The State Departrnent for Industry's financial statements were approved and signed by the

Accounting Oflicer on 2023

Dr. Juma Mukhwana, PhD, HSC
Principal Secretary

CPA Emest Lukayu
Head of Accounting Unit
ICPAK Member Number.4l 50

Thc Audit Comnittce met in
thr financial ycar 202112022
rcviewcd and approved allaudit
rcports issucd by thq intemal
audit unit.

Rcgulations 166(2) and 179(l) of
the Public Financc Managcmcnt
(National Govcmmcnt)
Regulations, 20 t 5, which rc4uircs
the Audit Committcc to carry out
annual revicw of independcnce,
performancc, and compctcncy of
the intemal audit unit and

commcnt on thcir cffectivcness in
the annual report and also cnsurc
that thc Audit Committcc mects at

lcast oncc in cvery thrcc months
rcsPcctivcly.
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- ANALYSIS OF PEi\IDING ACCOT,NTS PAYABLE-AIIEChEd

. ANALYSIS Otr'PENDING STAtrF PAYABLES

StaffPayables as 306 Juoe 2023
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ANNEX 3 - ANALYSIS OF OTHER PENDING PAYABLES

D t Anal sis -SDI
BAL. CIFPAYMENTBAL. BIF ADDITIONS

I.000.000.001,000,000.00
Investment Park

675,000.00675,000.00
2nd M anufucturing Expo

4,217.00
Unspent Aie

4,2t7.00

273,267.65273,267.65
Salary Deduction

454,245.75454,245.7 5

Transfer From Old Cbk

2.365,686.002,365,686.00
Africa Industrialization

7,598.0010,837,068.0010,000,000.00844,666.00
Regional Intergration & Imp

Programe

8,000.008,000.00
Nairobi Int. Trade Fair

1.699.350.00I,695,350.004,000.00
Aia /Sale Tenders

594,500.00594,500.00
2nd Commonwealth Sme

Trade Summit

180,000.00180,000.00
Afforestation And Greening

Proiect

480,000.00480,000.00
Directors Fees

r,M9,735.701.000.000.00449,735.70
Retention Money

36,400.0036,400.00
Tender Deposit

148,000.00148,000.00
Contributions Towards Ps

Office

841,300.005,54r,900.006.383,200.00
County Aggregated Industrial
Parks

r0,217,300.10r9.262.9s0.00 16,378,96E.007,333,3r8.10
Totals
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KI'I DEPOSIT BALANCE

Bal c/dPaid out during
the year

Additions for the5 BalBll

Fy 202312024FY 202212023 Year Fy 2O22|ZO23i c Fv2o22l2023
KshsDescription Kshs l(shs Kshs

L2,O25,516.OO

1,666,320.00
I Deposits (Fees)

1,795,880.00
2 Deposits (Fees)

L,694,24s.OO
3 Deposits (Fees)

1,831,485.O0
1 Oeposits (Fees)

1,305,200.00
5 Oeposits (Fees)

s,322,272.00
5 Deposits (Fees)

2,574,930.O0
7 Deposits (Fees)

2,210,OOO.O0
8 Deposits (Fees)

r,627 ,790.OO

9 Deposits (Fees)

1,505,355.00
Deposits (Fees)1

Deposits (tees)
2,160,580.00

7

1,545,050.00
I Deposits (Fees)

7,234,t50.O0
I Deposits (Fees)

1,318,900.00
1 Deposits (Fees)

8,951,49s.00
I Retention (Malsha)

72,7 63,412.O0
I Deposit (Malsha)

Director KlTl

746,730.OO
1

345,000.00
1 seminars (Meremers)
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19 Seminars (Cozie)
155,400.00

20 Material (Raflag)

293,740.00

2'J. Director KlTl (Medical)
240,000.00

22 Director KlTl (Medical)
240,000.00

23 Activity (SPORTS)

876,200.00

24 Activity (KETISA)

243,000.00

25 Director KlTl
3s0,000.00

26 Activity
432,500.00

27 Activity
55,000.00

Director KlTl
149,890.00

29 lnsurance (Sunlam)
166,33s.00

30 Activity
140,500.00

31 Director KlTl
493,394.00

32 KNEC

517,350.00

33 KNEC
2,861,990.00

34 seminar (Rawaka)

218,640.00

35 Activity (Sports)
345,745.O0

36 Assement
1,082,200.00

37 Activity (Sports)
797,300.00

38 Seminars
400,000.00

39 NITA
L76,205.OO

40 Director KlTl
298,259.00

4l Material (Ngorora)
59,495.00

MINISTRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRI
STATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30' June 2023.

35



s
TRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRY

TE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
ud Report strd Financial Statements for the year ended 30, June 2023.

705,000.00'il Seminars

4i Seminars
705,000.00

300,000.00
44 Activity

a4 Activity (Mahdaly)

148,900.00

28,000.00
46 Activity (Nachibwete)

47 Material (Reikay)

68,180.00

48
196,900.00

Material (Philocheck)

72,670.00
49 Material (Cozie)

24,000.00
50 Activity (Wagets)

797,265.00
51 Material (Raflag)

174,000.00
52 Seminars

29s,000.00
53 Material (Trajeli)

308,460.00
I Material (Evalan)

200,000.00
55 seminars (Emrome)

138,985.00
55 Material Ngumuka)

149,640.00
57 Director KlTl (Students

tD)

st Director KlTl
(Registration) t49,746.OO

24r,550.00
59 Material (Asmao)

282,500.00
50 Oirector KlTl (lnternal

cerficate)

240,000.00
51 Medicsl

148,700.00
62 Director KlTl (Caution)

149,300.00
63 Director KlTl (lnternal

Ce rt ificate)

752,400.OO
54 Activity (Spons)
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55 Activity (Sports)
812,600.00

66 Activity (Sports)
140,500.00

67 Seminars
400,000.00

58 Director KlTl (lnternal

Certificate) 148,575.00

69 Oirector KlTl

(Registration) 148,320.00

70 Director KlTl (Students

tD) 749,442.00

77 Activity
300,000.00

72 KNEC
64,800.00

73 Semianrs (The Bens)
91,000.00

74 lnternal Certificate
(Government Printers) 278,400.O0

75 Material (serelim)
51,385.00

75 Material (Luwan)
277,768.00

77 Material (Mak Mar)
60,500.00

78 Material (roylene)
175,550.00

79 KNEC

2,273,260.00

80 Seminars
286,477.00

81 Director KlTl (Caution)
149,87s.00

82 Director KlTl (Medical)
149,900.00

o2 Material (Mammeny)
224,050.00

84 Material (Experts

Hardware) 85,440.00

85 Material (Afrinet)
94,000.00

86 Material (WYCC)

136,050.00

87 Material (Modern
Mobility) 101,875.00

MINISTRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRY
STATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
Annuat Report and Finsncial Statements for the year ended 30, June 2023.
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Director KlTl (lnternal
Certificate) 149,500.O0r

3

749,524.00
B ) Dlrector KlTl (Trade

Test)

234,s75.001
Actiivty (Sporst)

693,400.00
) A3sement

t78,263.OO
ti Trade Test

200,000.00
l: Activity (KETISA)

Serninars
151,260.00

(
4

356,500.00

a C Director KlTl
(Registration)

69,750.00

( 6 lnsurance (AAA)

330,000.00
3 7 Seminars

286,477.O0
I t Seminars

389,970.00
9 ) Material (WYCC)

227 ,230.00
1 ) Seminars

149,550.00
1, ): Director KlTl (Caution)

39,030.00
1r Material (Dalushe)

l:

257 ,340.00
7 Seminars

149,908.00
1( Director KlTl (Seminars)

329,250.OO
Material (WYCC)

Material (Cozie)

103,280.00

92,593.00
10 Material (Elidaac)

10 KNEC

589,500.00

3,024,950.00
10 KNEC

25t,750.OO
1 Semlnars (Zakhad)

STRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRY
ATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY

ual Report and Financial Statem€nts for the year ended 30, June 2023.
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111 Director KlTl
133,600.00

L72 Actlvity
112,980.00

113 Seminars
356,577.O0

114 Oirector KlTl (Students

tD) 148,052.00

115 Activity
148,900.00

116 Seminars (Sudy Movers)
872,720.00

117 Director KlTl
(Registration) 327,900.00

118 Director KlTl
149,114.00

119 Seminars (Tightsight)
478,440.O0

120 Seminars (Voufar)
559,090.00

121 Seminars (Rabin)
624,600.00

122 Seminars (Tightsight)
371,700.00

723 Seminars (Tightsight)
317,520.00

724 Seminars (Sudy Movers)
293,400.00

125 Material (Mammeny)
165,890.00

726 Material (Syntext)
251,040.00

r27 Director KlTl
r49,050.00

128 Material (Peca)

59,200.00

129 Seminars (Lintar
247,645.00

130 seminars (Mahdaly)
229,110.00

131 Seminars (Larivent)
206,470.00

132 Seminars (Nakuru

Norch) 249,110.00

133 Seminars (Rawaka)
276,080.00

MINISTRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTR1
STATE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
Annual Report and Financial Ststements for the year ended 30, June 2023.
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240,900.00
4 Seminars (Onchees)

5 Seminars (Evantum)

257,200.00

253,100.00
6 Seminars (Edmerline)

235,425.O0
7 Seminars (Lintar)

226,900.00
7t Seminars (Onchees)

293,495.00
1 3 Seminars (Gwekes)

1, Seminars (Leemax)

199,775.00

275,840.O0
I Seminars (Dawaatis)

183,700.00

I1 Seminars (Meremers)

14 Seminars (Evantum)

372,500.00

23r,700.00
IE Seminars (Edmerline)

134,980.00
14 Semlnars (Nelimax)

258,400.00
t4t Semlnars (Lintar)

240,500.00
t41 Seminars (Evantum)

213,000.00
148 Seminars (Mwapen)

206,800.00
L49 Seminars (Gwekes)

254,300.00
150 Seminars (Edmerline)

127 ,600.00

151 5eminars (Nelimax)

154,300.00
ts2 Seminars (Onchees)

280,300.00
153 Seminars (Veto Power)

320,000.00
tv Seminars (Evantum)

155 Seminars (Gwekes)

171,100.00

216,510.00
1s5 ;eminars (onchees)
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rs7 Seminars (Veto Power)
2t5,725.00

158 Seminars (Mahdaly)
227,250.00

159 Seminars (Edmerline)
279,500.00

150 Seminars (Onchees)

216,500.00

151 Seminars (Nelimax)
231,480.00

762 Seminars (Lintar)
234,200.00

153 Seminars (oawaatis)
119,160.00

164 Seminars (Meremers)
90,000.00

155 Material (Modern
Mobility) 132,515.00

166 Director KlTl
599,405.00

\67 Director KlTl (Seminars)

5s0,000.00

168 Material (Waget)
319,950.00

159 Activity (SPORTS)

780,030.00

165 Director KlTl (Medical)
150,000.00

TOTAT
12,025,516.(x) tt8,560,404.0|o 49,517,q)4.00 12,982,116.(x)
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4_ SUMMARY OF FIXED ASSET REGISTER

balance as at the cnd of the year is the cumulative cost ofall assets bought and inherited by the

M try, Department or Agency. Additions during the year should tie to note 9 on acquisition of assets

the year. Ensure this section is complete and covers all the State Department for Industry's assets.

the complete fixed asset register is separately prepared as per circular number 5/2020 and follow

uP ofcircular No. 23l2020 ofThe National Treasury)

n:, 927,3J1,41r14rJ99,0]?n ud *ucuru ,85r52J82
1r,000,0{0I Julplillls 15,0m,000

0&
tuir 4,n2$64iJ50

quiprm, lmirurc rri
4i14,945

97?,0?1,914y1,445,5t7fol 635,62?32,
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ANNEX 5 - LIST OT' PROIECTS IMPLEMENTED BY TIIE STATf, DEPARTMENT FOR

INDUSTRY

Dr. Juma

Mukhwana,

PhD

YesTo increase

innovetion and

productivity in

sclected private firms

I Kenya Industry

and

Entrepreneurship

Project (KIEP)

43



r
a

ISTRY OF INVESTMENTS, TRADE AND INDUSTRY
TE DEPARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY
ual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30' June 2023.

EX 6 - LIST OF SCS, SAGAS AND PUBLIC FUNDS UNDER THE STATE

ARTMENT FOR INDUSTRY

Trln f.ri to SACtu rnd SC!

10,000,000 194,412,500t84,412,5mI,lvcstrct Audlo
I 1,050,000Metal Council I1,050,000

38,000,000 166,122,500t28,t22,500ric llachiniu ComDler Limited

16s,595,00067095,000 r02J00,000Ed i Prcccssins brEs Autlprity
ts277,5@152115006tr I &omnic Zorc Audnrity

459,972,5002U,742,500 255230,000K!! Industrial Btates timited

551,372,500r25,000,000426,312,500Kqr Indusrial Rcsearch ad Dcvelopmcnt lNtilulion
208,210,00047,030,000 161200,000lJv 'EX

250239,998250,239,998&n ,a Accrcdilion Services

154,157,500154,t57,500IGn a Rcserch Devclopmcnt lll5titutc
221,899,811221,899,81lAIA

691,930,000 2,402,549,t091,710,619,809Itl L
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ANNDX 7 - C(}{IAIGDI{T LIA3IINf,8 NXGIS'TDT.

NoCoath3nLffiffi3rtcYou.
AItlItlSX t: IXF(IIII{G ffi CIIMA'Its IIX.DV/AI{T E:X"El{D[IIrnUl
lac
ANNEX * DTSA$TIil' D:X}E!{DITI'ND ID}ONTING TDM?LAIT
Norc
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10. REPORTS GENERATED FROM IFMIS

fotlorving financial Reports Generated from IFMIS should be generated and attached as

to these financial statements. Attached

l.

lr.

iii.

iv.

vi.

vlt.

viii.

ix.

x.

xi.

GOK IFMIS

FO30 (Bank

GOK IFMIS

GOK IFMIS

GOK IFMIS

GOK IFMIS

GOK IFMIS

GOK IFMIS

GOK IFMIS

GOK IFMIS

GOKIFMIS

Comparison Trial Balance

reconciliations) for all bank accounts

Receipts and Payments Statement

Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

Statement of Budget Execution

Statement of Deposits

Budget Execution by Programme and Economic Classification

Budget Execution by Heads and Programmes

Budget Execution by Programmes and Sub-programmes
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